
PROCLAMATION #1 



PROCLAMATION 
THE STATE OF TEXAS 

COUNTY OF BLANCO 

CITY OF BLANCO 

WHEREAS, the United States of America was established following the War 
of Revolution from 1776 to 1783, a war won through the brilliant and courageous 
leadership of George Washington, revered Father of our Nation; and  

WHEREAS, George Washington, who lived from 1732 to 1799, mobilized the 
Continental Army and led the American colonies against the most powerful country 
in the world, finally defeating the British at the famous battle of Yorktown, Virginia; 
and  

WHEREAS, this revered founder of our nation resisted the efforts of many 
supporters to make him a king or dictator, instead using his influence and power to 
support the creation and adoption of the Constitution of the United States; and 

WHEREAS, George Washington was elected as the first President of the 
United States, serving two terms of office from 1789 to 1797, and through his de-
votion, wisdom, and vision, became the exemplar of distinguished leadership for 
all future presidents; and  

WHEREAS,  the San Antonio Chapter of the Sons of the American Revolution 
with the James McHenry Chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution en-
courage all citizens to recognize the epochal contributions of George Washington 
to our nation by celebrating his birth on Saturday, February 22, 2025. 

NOW THEREFORE I, Candy Cargill, by virtue of the authority vested in me as 
Mayor, City of Blanco, Blanco County, Texas do hereby proclaim Sunday, February 
22, 2026 as  

PRESIDENT GEORGE WASHINGTON DAY 

And call upon all citizens to recognize and honor the brilliance, courage, and vision 
of the Father of our Nation and the relevance of his life to the preservation of our 
democracy in today’s complex world. 



IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused to be affixed 
the Seal of the City of Blanco of Blanco County, Texas, this 10th day of February, 
2026. 

 

                  ___________________ 

        Mayor  

ATTEST: 

____________________ 

Deputy City Secretary 

                 



 
 

PROCLAMATION #2 

 
  



City of Blanco, Texas 
 

Valentine’s Day Proclamation 

 

WHEREAS, Valentine’s Day is all about love, laughter, and maybe a little chocolate; and 

WHEREAS, in Blanco we don’t just celebrate Valentine’s Day on February 14th—we live it every day through 
friendly waves, helping hands, and looking out for one another; and 

WHEREAS, love in Blanco shows up in many forms: neighbors helping neighbors, volunteers stepping up, 
local businesses keeping our town thriving, and citizens who care deeply about this special place we call home; 
and 

WHEREAS, this community proves time and again that the heart of Blanco beats strong—whether during 
celebrations, challenges, or ordinary days that turn out to be pretty extraordinary; 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Candy Cargill, Mayor of the City of Blanco, Texas, do hereby proclaim February 14th 
as 

VALENTINE’S DAY IN BLANCO 
and encourage everyone to share a smile, lend a hand, hug a neighbor (with permission), support local, and 
spread a little extra love around town. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of Blanco to be affixed this ___ 
day of February, 2026. 

 

______________________________ 

Candy Cargill, Mayor 

City of Blanco, Texas 

 

For the � of Blanco 

 

 



 
 

STAFF 
CITY HALL 

 
  



City Administration 
Report
WARREN ESCOVY

FEB 26

BLANCO C ITY  COUNCIL



Candidate filing deadlines
• opens on 1-14-26

• Closes on 2-13-26

• Blanco County running City election. 



Water plant 
•Operational
•Ready to look at options
•Looking at a blending
Approval from TCEQ
•All info has been submitted
to TCEQ
•April 1st starting date?



Sewer line update
•100% plans

•Awarded to AO Services

•Neighbors Market CLOMR submittal
•Completion date May



Blanco Comprehensive Plan Update

•$300,000 Resilient Communities grant
•Public engagement 
•Target July/August
•Start UDC re-write in
Spring 26’



$200,000 alternative transportation plan 
grant

2025 Transportation Alternatives  Call for Projects Detailed Application (DA) Instructions for  
NON-INFRASTRUCTURE Project Categories

• $160,000 grant with $40,000 match

•Creation of a plan: trails, side walks, surveys, etc

•Met with Wheels and Feet Group

•Met with Joe Muck and TXDOT to get started

•TXDOT services agreement

•Look for an RFQ for Planning services



PEC Poles with shields



Thank you
WA R R E N  E S C O V Y

F E B R U A R Y  2 6

B L A N C O  C I T Y  C O U N C I L



 
 

STAFF 
FINANCE 

 
  



Revenue Summary

Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Expense Totals 34.79% 1,419,235.42214,459.34 757,275.73 2,176,511.15

53,840.00 37.05% 33,892.38

Water 21.64 64.92 300.00 21.64% 235.08

Vehicle Expenses 2,785.85 19,947.62

48,200.00 19.97% 38,575.43

Utilities 3,106.60 11,611.07 43,800.00 26.51% 32,188.93

Maintenance 160.41 9,624.57

82,370.00 25.22% 61,599.76

General Insurance 114.00 62,707.00 76,946.55 81.49% 14,239.55

Computers 3,543.76 20,770.24

39,950.00 5.97% 37,566.31

Other Expenses 2,980.77 20,988.44 74,134.00 28.31% 53,145.56

Supplies 299.05 2,383.69

12,092.50 19.28% 9,760.80

Services 17,031.66 18,708.65 35,491.58 52.71% 16,782.93

Travel Expenses 587.77 2,331.70

210,308.78 47.52% 110,372.10

Personnel 139,709.80 450,995.68 1,435,977.74 31.41% 984,982.06

Outside Services 32,788.36 99,936.68

31,200.00 94.24% 1,798.20

Education and Training 354.67 7,803.67 31,900.00 24.46% 24,096.33

Community Aide and Events 10,975.00 29,401.80

37.56% 1,405,666.22367,147.18 845,702.30 2,251,368.52

80,000.00 24.01% 60,790.93

Utility Revenue 0.00 1,667.10 0.00 0.00% (1,667.10)

Interest Income 5,065.03 19,209.07

120,920.00 25.94% 89,549.22

Permit Fees 5,725.00 31,769.22 70,358.00 45.15% 38,588.78

Court Fines and Fees 6,161.25 31,370.78

9,423.68 97.24% 259.82

Grant Revenue 0.00 22,500.00 12,000.00 187.50% (10,500.00)

Other Revenues 141.75 9,163.86

695,366.84 44.40% 386,594.57

Tax Revenue 105,793.66 421,250.00 1,263,300.00 33.35% 842,050.00

Ad Valorem Tax Revenue 244,260.49 308,772.27

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual100 - General Fund

 1



Ad Valorem Tax Revenue

Ad Valorem Tax Revenue Totals

Tax Revenue

Tax Revenue Totals

Other Revenues

Other Revenues Totals

Grant Revenue

10,000.00100-4215 PD - Grants 0.00 0.00 0.00%10,000.00

259.82141.75 9,163.86 9,423.68 97.24%

724.50100-4501 Police Services - Escorts

141.75 141.75 49.80%284.63 142.88100-4502 Police Services - Reports

0.00 0.00 0.00%724.50

207.00100-4325 Open Records

0.00 0.00 0.00%1,997.55 1,997.55100-4350 Recycling

0.00 0.00 0.00%207.00

517.50100-4165 Land Lease

0.00 9,022.11 581.13%1,552.50 (7,469.61)100-4170 Miscellaneous Income

0.00 0.00 0.00%517.50

0.00%1,035.00 1,035.00100-4150 LEOSE (Law Enforcement Officer 
  0.00 0.00 0.00%3,105.00 3,105.00100-4160 Liquor License

0.00 0.00

12,652.01100-4180 Mixed Beverage Taxes Allocation

842,050.00105,793.66 421,250.00 1,263,300.00 33.35%

2,174.44 8,047.99 38.88%20,700.00

760,668.96100-4110 City Sales & Use Tax Allocation

16,146.00 45,120.97 39.63%113,850.00 68,729.03100-4120 Franchise Fees/Right of Way

87,473.22 368,081.04 32.61%1,128,750.00

386,594.57244,260.49 308,772.27 695,366.84 44.40%

25.00100-4013 Current Overages

0.00 0.00 0.00%25.00 25.00100-4014 Delinquent Overages

0.00 0.00 0.00%25.00

300.18100-4011 Delinquent Penalty (M&O)

351.78 4,063.79 78.53%5,175.00 1,111.21100-4012 Delinquent M&O

42.22 476.07 61.33%776.25

3,105.00100-4009 Current Penalty (M&O)

53.82 414.39 50.05%828.00 413.61100-4010 Delinquent Interest (M&O)

0.00 0.00 0.00%3,105.00

380,579.57100-4007 Current M&O

0.00 0.00 0.00%1,035.00 1,035.00100-4008 Current Interest (M&O)

243,812.67 303,818.02 44.39%684,397.59

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual100 - General Fund

 1



Grant Revenue Totals

Court Fines and Fees

Court Fines and Fees Totals

Permit Fees

500.00100-4421 Sign Permit 0.00 0.00 0.00%500.00

1,000.00100-4419 Re-Zoning

250.00 500.00 50.00%1,000.00 500.00100-4420 Roofing

0.00 0.00 0.00%1,000.00

1,190.00100-4417 Plat

400.00 2,050.00 79.23%2,587.50 537.50100-4418 Plumbing Permit

0.00 1,310.00 52.40%2,500.00

1,070.00100-4415 Permits/Fees-Other

0.00 4,041.22 161.65%2,500.00 (1,541.22)100-4416 Plan Review

0.00 2,035.00 65.54%3,105.00

450.00100-4413 Mechanical HVAC Permits

0.00 25.00 5.00%500.00 475.00100-4414 Peddler Permit

400.00 1,050.00 70.00%1,500.00

195.00100-4410 Garage Sale Permits & Other

0.00 0.00 0.00%50.00 50.00100-4411 Golf Cart Permit

0.00 5.00 2.50%200.00

450.00100-4408 Electrical Permit

0.00 50.00 10.00%500.00 450.00100-4409 Fencing Permit

400.00 2,550.00 85.00%3,000.00

1,000.00100-4406 Development Fees

0.00 0.00 0.00%500.00 500.00100-4407 Driveway Permit

0.00 0.00 0.00%1,000.00

(25.00)100-4403 Certificate of Occupancy

0.00 0.00 0.00%500.00 500.00100-4405 Demolition Permit

300.00 1,525.00 101.67%1,500.00

90.00%500.00 50.00100-4401 Building Inspection Fees

3,725.00 14,478.00 36.20%40,000.00 25,522.00100-4402 Building Permit

250.00 450.00

700.00100-4360 Rental Income

89,549.226,161.25 31,370.78 120,920.00 25.94%

0.00 100.00 12.50%800.00

365.00100-4320 Notary Public

0.00 0.00 0.00%20.00 20.00100-4330 Photocopies

0.00 135.00 27.00%500.00

431.00100-4311 Time Payment Reimbursement Fee

1,303.97 6,619.76 26.48%25,000.00 18,380.24100-4312 Mun Court Svc Fee Retained

0.00 69.00 13.80%500.00

3,440.00100-4306 LTPDF (Local Truancy Prevention & 
   4.18 22.02 22.02%100.00 77.98100-4309 MJF (Municipal Jury Fund - $0.10)

15.00 60.00 1.71%3,500.00

65,581.00100-4302 Fines

(82.00) (54.00) (10.80%)500.00 554.00100-4305 FTA3 (Omni Fee - City $10.00)

4,920.10 24,419.00 27.13%90,000.00

(10,500.00)0.00 22,500.00 12,000.00 187.50%

0.00 22,500.00 1125.00%2,000.00 (20,500.00)100-4220 Grants - Other

 1



Permit Fees Totals

Interest Income

Interest Income Totals

Utility Revenue

Utility Revenue Totals

Revenue Totals 1,405,666.2237.56%2,251,368.52845,702.30367,147.18

0.00%0.00 (1,667.10)100-4911 Income - Other

(1,667.10)0.00 1,667.10 0.00 0.00%

0.00 1,667.10

60,790.93100-4805 Interest Income

60,790.935,065.03 19,209.07 80,000.00 24.01%

5,065.03 19,209.07 24.01%80,000.00

38,588.785,725.00 31,769.22 70,358.00 45.15%

800.00100-4430 Mobile Food Truck Permit

0.00 0.00 0.00%310.50 310.50100-4432 Mailing/Postage

0.00 200.00 20.00%1,000.00

3,105.00100-4425 Variance Application Fees

0.00 1,500.00 60.00%2,500.00 1,000.00100-4427 Short Term Rental Fees

0.00 0.00 0.00%3,105.00

0.00 0.00 0.00%500.00 500.00100-4424 TX Alcohol Beverage Commission

 1



100 - General Fund          Council

Community Aide and Events
Education and Training
Outside Services
Personnel
Services
Supplies
Travel Expenses

Council Totals

100 - General Fund          Administration

Community Aide and Events
Computers
Education and Training
General Insurance
Maintenance
Other Expenses
Outside Services
Personnel
Services
Supplies
Travel Expenses
Utilities

Administration Totals

100 - General Fund          Police

65,368.13 602,534.92

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

224,486.00 37.26% 378,048.92

12.17% 8,167.82587.77 9,300.00
2,848.01 27.12% 7,651.99685.79 10,500.00

192.29 6,350.00
1,132.18
2,088.82 32.89% 4,261.18

32.11% 287,921.0145,034.12 424,097.92
1,734.91 42.63% 2,335.09342.92 4,070.00

13,010.00 66,900.00
136,176.91

55,314.06 82.68% 11,585.94

75.80% 1,452.10160.41 6,000.00
5,591.65 56.80% 4,253.352,434.61 9,845.00

6.00 72.00
4,547.90

16.00 22.22% 56.00

25.03% 31,638.112,559.55 42,200.00
4,473.67 47.09% 5,026.33354.67 9,500.00

0.00 13,700.00
10,561.89

0.00 0.00% 13,700.00

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

13.65% 12,265.42575.00 14,205.00

0.00 1,550.00

1,939.58

84.58 5.46% 1,465.42

0.00% 1,000.000.00 1,000.00
30.00 20.00% 120.000.00 150.00

400.00 4,800.00
0.00

800.00 16.67% 4,000.00

14.29% 3,000.000.00 3,500.00
525.00 23.81% 1,680.00175.00 2,205.00

0.00 1,000.00
500.00

0.00 0.00% 1,000.00

City of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

2/6/2026 1:13:35 PM

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Community Aide and Events
Computers
Education and Training
General Insurance
Maintenance
Other Expenses
Outside Services
Personnel
Services
Supplies
Utilities
Vehicle Expenses

Police Totals

100 - General Fund          Court

Computers
Education and Training
General Insurance
Other Expenses
Outside Services
Personnel
Services
Supplies
Travel Expenses
Water

Court Totals

100 - General Fund          Parks and Streets

Community Aide and Events
Maintenance
Supplies
Utilities

Parks and Streets Totals 43.09% 39,268.818,269.57 69,000.00

1,119.57 15,800.00

29,731.19

4,471.09 28.30% 11,328.91

0.00% 23,200.000.00 23,200.00
0.00 0.00% 30,000.000.00 30,000.00

7,150.00 0.00
0.00

25,260.10 0.00% (25,260.10)

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

38.23% 70,298.2412,290.46 113,803.57

21.64 300.00

43,505.33

64.92 21.64% 235.08

12.92% 496.3825.26 570.00
1,114.94 89.73% 127.560.00 1,242.50

0.00 100.00
73.62

0.00 0.00% 100.00

28.75% 14,962.502,400.00 21,000.00
29,780.87 38.59% 47,386.209,482.19 77,167.07

0.00 400.00
6,037.50

0.00 0.00% 400.00

608.75% (2,035.00)0.00 400.00
8.00 33.33% 16.002.00 24.00

359.37 12,600.00
2,435.00
3,990.48 31.67% 8,609.52

102,388.73 1,123,863.88

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

330,676.10 29.42% 793,187.78

25.22% 11,216.781,125.31 15,000.00
19,947.62 37.05% 33,892.382,785.85 53,840.00

81.50 2,750.00
3,783.22

191.25 6.95% 2,558.75

29.32% 634,798.8584,793.49 898,112.75
12,581.74 49.69% 12,739.8412,581.74 25,321.58

290.00 4,480.00
263,313.90

870.00 19.42% 3,610.00

0.25% 3,989.830.00 4,000.00
14,172.63 25.04% 42,416.370.00 56,589.00

106.00 16,500.55
10.17

8,876.00 53.79% 7,624.55

22.55% 21,352.13624.84 27,570.00
395.00 2.14% 18,105.000.00 18,500.00

0.00 1,200.00
6,217.87

316.70 26.39% 883.30

 1



100 - General Fund          Non-Department

Community Aide and Events
General Insurance
Maintenance
Other Expenses
Outside Services
Personnel
Services
Supplies
Utilities

Non-Department Totals

Expense Total 34.79% 1,419,235.42214,459.34 2,176,511.15

25,567.45 253,103.78

757,275.73

126,937.53 50.15% 126,166.25

0.00% 130.000.00 130.00
508.75 20.35% 1,991.25175.93 2,500.00

4,107.00 5,000.00
0.00

4,392.00 87.84% 608.00

32.14% 78,533.6616,913.36 115,723.78
20,924.00 65.80% 10,876.000.00 31,800.00

546.16 7,300.00
37,190.12

1,224.16 16.77% 6,075.84

89.16% 6,543.000.00 60,350.00
5,066.50 33.78% 9,933.500.00 15,000.00

3,825.00 15,300.00
53,807.00

3,825.00 25.00% 11,475.00

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Council Totals

120.00100-01-5904 Office Supplies 20.00%

575.00 1,939.58 14,205.00 13.65% 12,265.42

0.00 30.00 150.00

100.00100-01-5794 Parking & Tolls 0.00%

0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00100-01-5859 Rental Facility Fees 0.00%

0.00 0.00 100.00

165.42100-01-5792 Meals & Entertainment 33.83%

0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00100-01-5793 Mileage 0.00%

0.00 84.58 250.00

4,000.00100-01-5757 Stipends 16.67%

0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00100-01-5791 Hotel Expense 0.00%

400.00 800.00 4,800.00

1,500.00100-01-5313 Education (Education, Training, C   0.00%

175.00 525.00 2,205.00 1,680.00100-01-5621 Janitorial 23.81%

0.00 0.00 1,500.00

1,000.00100-01-5180 Community Appreciation Events 0.00%

0.00 500.00 2,000.00 1,500.00100-01-5312 Dues/Membership 25.00%

0.00 0.00 1,000.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used100 - General Fund          Council

 1



3,179.11100-02-5793 Mileage 9.17%0.00 320.89 3,500.00

3,480.88100-02-5791 Hotel Expense 12.98%

29.68 225.28 1,500.00 1,274.72100-02-5792 Meals & Entertainment 15.02%

519.12 519.12 4,000.00

16,431.17100-02-5759 TMRS-Employer Contribution 32.78%

0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00100-02-5786 Overtime 0.00%

2,702.10 8,011.18 24,442.35

150.00100-02-5756 Longevity 66.67%

0.00 0.00 35.00 35.00100-02-5758 Payroll Expenses 0.00%

0.00 300.00 450.00

14,240.08100-02-5754 Social Security - Employer Paid 32.63%

545.40 1,612.63 4,943.01 3,330.38100-02-5755 Medicare Expense 32.62%

2,332.14 6,895.57 21,135.65

264.06100-02-5718 Vision 25.00%

37,686.38 111,432.23 340,897.51 229,465.28100-02-5751 Salaries/Wages Expense 32.69%

19.56 88.02 352.08

22,147.02100-02-5713 Health 25.00%

26.70 89.00 349.20 260.20100-02-5715 Life 25.49%

1,640.52 7,382.34 29,529.36

56.00100-02-5702 AD&D 22.22%

81.32 365.94 1,463.76 1,097.82100-02-5708 Dental 25.00%

6.00 16.00 72.00

21,566.54100-02-5627 Legal Fees 56.87%

100.00 26,355.60 15,000.00 (11,355.60)100-02-5633 Professional Fees 175.70%

12,760.00 28,433.46 50,000.00

116.58100-02-5603 Filing Fees 88.34%

150.00 525.00 1,900.00 1,375.00100-02-5621 Janitorial 27.63%

719.62 883.42 1,000.00

480.01100-02-5402 Minor Equipment 4.00%

0.00 0.00 250.00 250.00100-02-5601 Admin Fees 0.00%

19.99 19.99 500.00

2,708.33100-02-5312 Dues/Membership 32.29%

95.00 3,182.00 5,500.00 2,318.00100-02-5313 Education (Education, Training, C   57.85%

259.67 1,291.67 4,000.00

1,000.00100-02-5203 Computer Hardware 0.00%

0.00 2,894.07 14,000.00 11,105.93100-02-5205 Computer - Software Updates 20.67%

0.00 0.00 1,000.00

15,468.77100-02-5201 Computer Maintenance 29.69%

350.62 1,136.59 5,200.00 4,063.41100-02-5202 Copier Lease 21.86%

2,208.93 6,531.23 22,000.00

200.00100-02-5101 Christmas Lights 0.00%

0.00 0.00 13,500.00 13,500.00100-02-5190 Elections 0.00%

0.00 0.00 200.00

3,500.00100-02-5003 Codification Expense 25.45%

0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00100-02-5008 Awards 0.00%

1,195.00 1,195.00 4,695.00

3,000.00 (493.24)100-02-5001 Appreciation 116.44%

0.00 0.00 200.00 200.00100-02-5002 Bank Charges 0.00%

100 - General Fund          Administration

500.00 3,493.24

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Administration Totals

877.57100-02-5964 Gas / Propane 12.24%

65,368.13 224,486.00 602,534.92 37.26% 378,048.92

0.00 122.43 1,000.00

1,736.87100-02-5951 Electric 30.53%

539.59 1,962.45 7,000.00 5,037.55100-02-5954 Telephones/Broadband/Internet 28.04%

146.20 763.13 2,500.00

1,892.65100-02-5906 Postage 24.29%

0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00100-02-5909 Postage Supplies 0.00%

89.85 607.35 2,500.00

797.83100-02-5904 Office Supplies 60.11%

0.00 0.00 500.00 500.00100-02-5905 Postage Meter Rental 0.00%

102.44 1,202.17 2,000.00

100.00100-02-5902 Consumables 0.00%

0.00 179.98 250.00 70.02100-02-5903 Office Furniture - Admin 71.99%

0.00 0.00 100.00

1,147.00100-02-5858 Records Retention 39.47%

0.00 99.32 500.00 400.68100-02-5901 Cleaning Supplies 19.86%

300.00 748.00 1,895.00

1,452.10100-02-5801 Building Maintenance 75.80%

42.92 986.91 2,175.00 1,188.09100-02-5857 Subscriptions 45.38%

160.41 4,547.90 6,000.00

38.97 66.89 300.00 233.11100-02-5794 Parking & Tolls 22.30%

 1



3,989.83100-03-5801 Building Maintenance 0.25%0.00 10.17 4,000.00

1,886.14100-03-5770 Employment Costs-Police 24.55%

42.47 4,211.60 5,000.00 788.40100-03-5786 Overtime 84.23%

578.86 613.86 2,500.00

4,000.00100-03-5762 Safety Body Armor 0.00%

225.00 675.00 10,000.00 9,325.00100-03-5764 Certification Pay 6.75%

0.00 0.00 4,000.00

3,600.00100-03-5760 Uniforms Allowance - Police 0.00%

0.00 901.66 5,000.00 4,098.34100-03-5761 Uniforms/Apparel - Police 18.03%

0.00 0.00 3,600.00

(110.00)100-03-5756 Longevity 109.65%

4,846.09 14,763.14 47,541.11 32,777.97100-03-5759 TMRS-Employer Contribution 31.05%

0.00 1,250.00 1,140.00

28,293.39100-03-5754 Social Security - Employer Paid 31.18%

981.64 2,997.33 9,614.31 6,616.98100-03-5755 Medicare Expense 31.18%

4,197.28 12,816.07 41,109.46

1,000.00100-03-5720 Animal Boarding 0.00%

67,705.61 202,649.64 663,055.87 460,406.23100-03-5751 Salaries/Wages Expense 30.56%

0.00 0.00 1,000.00

953.00100-03-5716 Mobile Equipment 43.94%

78.24 283.64 1,173.60 889.96100-03-5718 Vision 24.17%

90.00 747.00 1,700.00

6,593.55100-03-5714 Law Enforcement Liability 54.72%

71.20 275.90 1,068.00 792.10100-03-5715 Life 25.83%

0.00 7,967.00 14,560.55

3,706.48100-03-5708 Dental 24.04%

5,741.82 20,703.34 98,431.20 77,727.86100-03-5713 Health 21.03%

325.28 1,172.72 4,879.20

178.00100-03-5702 AD&D 25.83%

0.00 100.00 0.00 (100.00)100-03-5703 Admin Fee 0.00%

16.00 62.00 240.00

5,000.00100-03-5403 Grants/Donations 0.00%

290.00 870.00 3,480.00 2,610.00100-03-5621 Janitorial 25.00%

0.00 0.00 5,000.00

3,485.00100-03-5401 Investigations 12.88%

0.00 13,657.63 47,589.00 33,931.37100-03-5402 Minor Equipment 28.70%

0.00 515.00 4,000.00

13,605.00100-03-5313 Education (Training, Hotel, Meals   2.82%

0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00100-03-5315 Tuition Reimbursement 0.00%

0.00 395.00 14,000.00

10,661.41100-03-5205 Computer - Software Updates 29.16%

0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00100-03-5312 Dues/Membership 0.00%

38.59 4,388.59 15,050.00

4,367.39100-03-5202 Copier Lease 20.59%

0.00 0.00 3,500.00 3,500.00100-03-5203 Computer Hardware 0.00%

350.63 1,132.61 5,500.00

1,200.00 883.30100-03-5181 Community Outreach 26.39%

235.62 696.67 3,520.00 2,823.33100-03-5201 Computer Maintenance 19.79%

100 - General Fund          Police

0.00 316.70

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Police Totals

(9,272.11)100-03-5957 Vehicle - Other 0.00%

102,388.73 330,676.10 1,123,863.88 29.42% 793,187.78

0.00 9,272.11 0.00

2,250.41100-03-5951 Electric 24.99%

930.37 3,033.63 12,000.00 8,966.37100-03-5954 Telephones/Broadband/Internet 25.28%

194.94 749.59 3,000.00

150.00100-03-5906 Postage 0.00%

0.00 0.00 100.00 100.00100-03-5909 Postage Supplies 0.00%

0.00 0.00 150.00

500.00100-03-5901 Cleaning Supplies 0.00%

81.50 191.25 2,000.00 1,808.75100-03-5904 Office Supplies 9.56%

0.00 0.00 500.00

149.14100-03-5852 Copy/Printing Expense 25.43%

12,530.88 12,530.88 25,121.58 12,590.70100-03-5853 Dispatch (County Dispatch) 49.88%

50.86 50.86 200.00

2,856.03100-03-5812 Vehicle Interest Expense 25.62%

112.69 531.74 15,000.00 14,468.26100-03-5815 Vehicle Repair & Maintenance 3.54%

488.66 983.97 3,840.00

2,184.50 9,159.80 35,000.00 25,840.20100-03-5811 Fuel 26.17%

 1



Court Totals 38.23% 70,298.2412,290.46 43,505.33 113,803.57

426.38100-04-5904 Office Supplies 14.72%

0.00 0.00 70.00 70.00100-04-5906 Postage 0.00%

25.26 73.62 500.00

100.00100-04-5856 Notary Public 0.00%

21.64 64.92 300.00 235.08100-04-5870 Subscriptions 21.64%

0.00 0.00 100.00

155.60100-04-5793 Mileage 68.88%

0.00 0.00 120.00 120.00100-04-5794 Parking & Tolls 0.00%

0.00 344.40 500.00

(426.30)100-04-5791 Hotel Expense 242.10%

0.00 44.24 322.50 278.26100-04-5792 Meals & Entertainment 13.72%

0.00 726.30 300.00

(65.00)100-04-5756 Longevity 144.83%

537.75 1,642.65 4,150.56 2,507.91100-04-5759 TMRS-Employer Contribution 39.58%

0.00 210.00 145.00

2,203.34100-04-5754 Social Security - Employer Paid 38.61%

107.07 324.11 839.37 515.26100-04-5755 Medicare Expense 38.61%

457.77 1,385.71 3,589.05

78.24100-04-5718 Vision 33.33%

7,500.00 22,700.00 57,887.89 35,187.89100-04-5751 Salaries/Wages Expense 39.21%

9.78 39.12 117.36

6,562.08100-04-5713 Health 33.33%

8.90 35.60 106.80 71.20100-04-5715 Life 33.33%

820.26 3,281.04 9,843.12

16.00100-04-5702 AD&D 33.33%

40.66 162.64 487.92 325.28100-04-5708 Dental 33.33%

2.00 8.00 24.00

1,500.00100-04-5633 Professional Fees 0.00%

0.00 517.50 2,500.00 1,982.50100-04-5636 Municipal Court Collection Serv 20.70%

0.00 0.00 1,500.00

9,700.00100-04-5628 Municipal Court Judge 33.10%

0.00 720.00 2,500.00 1,780.00100-04-5630 Prosecutor 28.80%

2,400.00 4,800.00 14,500.00

(2,010.00)100-04-5313 Education (Education, Training, C   770.00%

0.00 0.00 400.00 400.00100-04-5402 Minor Equipment 0.00%

0.00 2,310.00 300.00

5,405.94100-04-5205 Computer - Software Updates 34.87%

0.00 125.00 100.00 (25.00)100-04-5312 Dues/Membership 125.00%

0.00 2,894.06 8,300.00

2,500.00 1,803.33100-04-5201 Computer Maintenance 27.87%

123.75 399.75 1,800.00 1,400.25100-04-5202 Copier Lease 22.21%

100 - General Fund          Court

235.62 696.67

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Parks and Streets Totals 43.09% 39,268.818,269.57 29,731.19 69,000.00

9,328.91100-05-5951 Electric 32.40%

0.00 0.00 2,000.00 2,000.00100-05-5953 Street Lighting 0.00%

1,119.57 4,471.09 13,800.00

20,700.00100-05-5800 Maintenance & Infrastructure 0.00%

0.00 0.00 30,000.00 30,000.00100-05-5908 Paving Materials 0.00%

0.00 0.00 20,700.00

0.00 (25,260.10)100-05-5101 Christmas Lights 0.00%

0.00 0.00 2,500.00 2,500.00100-05-5155 Tree Trimming 0.00%

100 - General Fund          Parks and Streets

7,150.00 25,260.10

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% Budget 
Used

 1



Non-Department Totals

Expense Totals 214,459.34 1,419,235.4234.79%2,176,511.15757,275.73

50.15% 126,166.2525,567.45 126,937.53 253,103.78

130.00100-06-5907 Po Box Rental - Non-Departmenta 0.00%

175.93 508.75 2,500.00 1,991.25100-06-5951 Electric 20.35%

0.00 0.00 130.00

(250.00)100-06-5727 Cyber Insurance 120.00%

4,107.00 4,392.00 5,000.00 608.00100-06-5857 Subscriptions 87.84%

0.00 1,500.00 1,250.00

2,570.53100-06-5721 Automobile Liability 68.22%

0.00 230.00 227.70 (2.30)100-06-5722 Crime Coverage 101.01%

0.00 5,519.00 8,089.53

10,876.00100-06-5719 Workmen's Comp TML-IRP 65.80%

0.00 0.00 853.78 853.78100-06-5720 Animal Mortality 0.00%

0.00 20,924.00 31,800.00

1,913.00100-06-5712 General Liability Insurance 42.03%

0.00 38,010.00 34,000.00 (4,010.00)100-06-5717 Real & Personal Property 111.79%

0.00 1,387.00 3,300.00

3,665.77100-06-5709 Errors & Omissions 43.45%

0.00 0.00 1,000.00 1,000.00100-06-5711 Liability Deductible 0.00%

0.00 2,817.00 6,482.77

9,933.50100-06-5639 Traffic Safety/Signage 33.78%

0.00 4,344.00 6,000.00 1,656.00100-06-5704 Automobile Physical Damage 72.40%

0.00 5,066.50 15,000.00

25,685.22100-06-5625 Appraisal District 26.61%

0.00 0.00 5,000.00 5,000.00100-06-5637 Surveying 0.00%

0.00 9,314.78 35,000.00

33,320.00100-06-5622 Audit Services 31.75%

1,413.36 12,375.34 31,050.00 18,674.66100-06-5623 Bldg Insp/Bureau Veritas 39.86%

15,500.00 15,500.00 48,820.00

1,000.00100-06-5321 Emergency Expenses 0.00%

351.00 729.00 1,200.00 471.00100-06-5611 Legal Notices/Publications 60.75%

0.00 0.00 1,000.00

100.00 (395.16)100-06-5002 Bank Charges 495.16%

3,825.00 3,825.00 15,300.00 11,475.00100-06-5104 B. C. South  Library Dis 25.00%

100 - General Fund          Non-Department

195.16 495.16

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% Budget 
Used

 1



Revenue Summary

Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Expense Totals 34.57% 1,715,057.26205,723.40 906,232.57 2,621,289.83

650.00 53.85% 300.00

Chemicals and Materials 0.00 0.00 2,587.50 0.00% 2,587.50

Bond Agent Fees 0.00 350.00

6,624.00 42.67% 3,797.79

Interest Expense 0.00 0.00 70,126.00 0.00% 70,126.00

Supplies 1,384.77 2,826.21

8,280.00 1.45% 8,160.00

Water 39,140.74 141,552.95 419,556.09 33.74% 278,003.14

Maintenance 0.00 120.00

183,712.50 75.06% 45,813.91

General Insurance 2.00 8.00 24.00 33.33% 16.00

Outside Services 14,285.83 137,898.59

22,770.00 81.31% 4,254.71

Education and Training 0.00 149.00 0.00 0.00% (149.00)

Computers 1,025.41 18,515.29

1,663,240.00 34.68% 1,086,399.86

Loans 0.00 300.00 170,000.00 0.18% 169,700.00

Utilities 141,622.15 576,840.14

4,875.00 33.07% 3,262.64

Personnel 8,054.27 26,060.03 68,844.74 37.85% 42,784.71

Other Expenses 208.23 1,612.36

34.63% 1,808,785.87232,820.43 958,371.63 2,767,157.50

33,270.00 22.45% 25,800.00

Interest Income 18,612.48 77,604.89 124,200.00 62.48% 46,595.11

Fees 2,830.00 7,470.00

7,517.50 2.00% 7,367.50

Utility Revenue 211,327.95 873,146.74 2,602,170.00 33.55% 1,729,023.26

Other Revenues 50.00 150.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual200 - Enterprise Fund

 1



Other Revenues

Other Revenues Totals

Utility Revenue

Utility Revenue Totals

Fees

Fees Totals

Interest Income

Interest Income Totals

Revenue Totals 1,808,785.8734.63%2,767,157.50958,371.63232,820.43

62.48%124,200.00 46,595.11200-4805 Interest Income

46,595.1118,612.48 77,604.89 124,200.00 62.48%

18,612.48 77,604.89

4,575.00200-4951 Connection Fee - Non Refundable

25,800.002,830.00 7,470.00 33,270.00 22.45%

1,630.00 2,670.00 36.85%7,245.00

2,775.00200-4906 Sewer Tap

0.00 2,400.00 23.19%10,350.00 7,950.00200-4907 Water Tap

1,200.00 2,400.00 46.38%5,175.00

0.00%10,000.00 10,000.00200-4701 Effluent Surcharge

0.00 0.00 0.00%500.00 500.00200-4702 Service Call Fees-Water

0.00 0.00

2,070.00200-4950 Water Meter Deposit (Water Meter 

1,729,023.26211,327.95 873,146.74 2,602,170.00 33.55%

0.00 0.00 0.00%2,070.00

1,420.00200-4909 Septage Receiving

0.00 33.18 0.00%0.00 (33.18)200-4911 Income - Other

240.00 380.00 21.11%1,800.00

454,706.16200-4904 Sewage

122,424.65 504,724.55 33.29%1,516,000.00 1,011,275.45200-4905 Water

56,136.38 233,293.84 33.91%688,000.00

242,359.68200-4901 Garbage

0.00 0.00 0.00%1,000.00 1,000.00200-4903 Sales Tax Revenue

30,293.05 125,065.32 34.04%367,425.00

3,995.00200-4620 CSI - Non-Refundable (Customer 
 1,748.87 8,469.85 40.92%20,700.00 12,230.15200-4703 Late Fees

485.00 1,180.00 22.80%5,175.00

7,367.5050.00 150.00 7,517.50 2.00%

7,000.00200-4170 Miscellaneous Income

50.00 150.00 28.99%517.50 367.50200-4326 NSF - Insufficient Funds

0.00 0.00 0.00%7,000.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual200 - Enterprise Fund

 1



200 - Enterprise Fund          General

Other Expenses
Personnel

General Totals

200 - Enterprise Fund          Water

Computers
Education and Training
General Insurance
Loans
Maintenance
Other Expenses
Outside Services
Personnel
Supplies
Utilities
Water

Water Totals

200 - Enterprise Fund          Sewer

Bond Agent Fees
Chemicals and Materials
Computers
Interest Expense
Loans
Maintenance

0.00% 170,000.000.00 170,000.00
0.00 0.00% 5,175.000.00 5,175.00

0.00 70,126.00
0.00
0.00 0.00% 70,126.00

0.00% 2,587.500.00 2,587.50
6,035.27 53.01% 5,349.73132.54 11,385.00

0.00 650.00
0.00

350.00 53.85% 300.00

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

33.74% 278,003.1439,140.74 419,556.09

486,888.65 39.66% 740,804.91106,677.00 1,227,693.56

56,060.19 666,970.00
141,552.95
227,265.54 34.07% 439,704.46

8.85% 36,231.57879.60 39,749.97
2,826.21 46.28% 3,280.291,384.77 6,106.50

8,226.33 76,797.00
3,518.40

98,094.03 127.73% (21,297.03)

3.86% 2,985.000.00 3,105.00
574.50 14.36% 3,425.5090.50 4,000.00

0.00 0.00
120.00
300.00 0.00% (300.00)

0.00% (149.00)0.00 0.00
8.00 33.33% 16.002.00 24.00

892.87 11,385.00
149.00

12,480.02 109.62% (1,095.02)

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

0.00% (22,541.63)7,174.67 0.00

23,579.49 0.00% (23,579.49)7,292.40 0.00

117.73 0.00
22,541.63

1,037.86 0.00% (1,037.86)

City of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

2/6/2026 1:13:35 PM

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Other Expenses
Outside Services
Personnel
Supplies
Utilities

Sewer Totals

Expense Total 1,715,057.26205,723.40 2,621,289.83906,232.57 34.57%

35.09% 646,695.4085,561.96 996,270.00

395,764.43 28.40% 997,831.8491,754.00 1,393,596.27

0.00 517.50
349,574.60

0.00 0.00% 517.50

37.23% 67,110.946,059.50 106,915.50
0.00 0.00% 29,094.770.00 29,094.77

0.00 875.00
39,804.56

0.00 0.00% 875.00

 1



General Totals

(18.94)200-00-5786 Overtime 0.00%

7,292.40 23,579.49 0.00 0.00% (23,579.49)

0.00 18.94 0.00

(35.00)200-00-5756 Longevity 0.00%

448.03 1,407.80 0.00 (1,407.80)200-00-5759 TMRS-Employer Contribution 0.00%

0.00 35.00 0.00

(1,215.17)200-00-5754 Social Security - Employer Paid 0.00%

90.60 284.17 0.00 (284.17)200-00-5755 Medicare Expense 0.00%

387.41 1,215.17 0.00

(1,037.86)200-00-5002 Bank Charges 0.00%

6,248.63 19,580.55 0.00 (19,580.55)200-00-5751 Salaries/Wages Expense 0.00%

117.73 1,037.86 0.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used200 - Enterprise Fund          General

 1



Water Totals

1,902.72200-01-5965 Telephones/Broadband/Internet 23.89%

106,677.00 486,888.65 1,227,693.56 39.66% 740,804.91

200.51 597.28 2,500.00

17,536.69200-01-5963 Electric 32.23%

0.00 914.09 2,070.00 1,155.91200-01-5964 Gas / Propane 44.16%

2,120.36 8,338.31 25,875.00

2,845.80200-01-5906 Postage 49.08%

0.00 83.01 517.50 434.49200-01-5911 Office Supplies 16.04%

1,384.77 2,743.20 5,589.00

76,285.00200-01-5848 GBRA 33.60%

21.64 135.07 776.25 641.18200-01-5870 Subscriptions 17.40%

9,650.00 38,600.00 114,885.00

(120.00)200-01-5825 Equipment Rental 0.00%

29,469.10 102,817.88 303,894.84 201,076.96200-01-5847 CLWSC water 33.83%

0.00 120.00 0.00

100.00200-01-5786 Overtime 0.00%

0.00 0.00 3,105.00 3,105.00200-01-5821 Major Equipment 0.00%

0.00 0.00 100.00

366.78200-01-5755 Medicare Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 1,813.68 1,813.68200-01-5759 TMRS-Employer Contribution 0.00%

0.00 0.00 366.78

25,295.40200-01-5751 Salaries/Wages Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 1,618.91 1,618.91200-01-5754 Social Security - Employer Paid 0.00%

0.00 0.00 25,295.40

71.20200-01-5715 Life 33.33%

9.78 39.12 117.36 78.24200-01-5718 Vision 33.33%

8.90 35.60 106.80

325.28200-01-5708 Dental 33.33%

820.26 3,281.04 9,843.12 6,562.08200-01-5713 Health 33.33%

40.66 162.64 487.92

(14,984.67)200-01-5644 Professional Fees 132.17%

2.00 8.00 24.00 16.00200-01-5702 AD&D 33.33%

4,265.08 61,559.67 46,575.00

1,242.00200-01-5642 Permits 0.00%

10.75 4,768.97 3,105.00 (1,663.97)200-01-5643 Permitting/Legal - Discharge 153.59%

0.00 0.00 1,242.00

2,310.55200-01-5332 Pre-Printed Water Bills 36.22%

3,950.50 31,765.39 25,875.00 (5,890.39)200-01-5641 Legal Fees 122.76%

760.33 1,311.95 3,622.50

(149.00)200-01-5313 Education (Education, Training, C   0.00%

0.00 10,776.20 6,727.50 (4,048.70)200-01-5331 Computer - Software & Updates 160.18%

0.00 149.00 0.00

(300.00)200-01-5124 TWDB Escrow Fees for 2017A 0.00%

132.54 391.87 1,035.00 643.13200-01-5201 Computer Maintenance 37.86%

0.00 300.00 0.00

636,525.00 419,109.14200-01-5070 INFRAMARK 34.16%

90.50 574.50 4,000.00 3,425.50200-01-5076 HR Green (HRG) GIS System 14.36%

200 - Enterprise Fund          Water

53,739.32 217,415.86

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Sewer Totals

Expense Totals 205,723.40 1,715,057.2634.57%2,621,289.83906,232.57

484.17200-02-5965 Telephones/Broadband/Internet 19.31%

91,754.00 395,764.43 1,393,596.27 28.40% 997,831.84

38.61 115.83 600.00

32,703.92200-02-5963 Electric 29.78%

0.00 914.09 2,070.00 1,155.91200-02-5964 Gas / Propane 44.16%

2,847.79 13,871.08 46,575.00

2,587.50200-02-5841 Chemicals 0.00%

0.00 0.00 517.50 517.50200-02-5906 Postage 0.00%

0.00 0.00 2,587.50

1,813.68200-02-5759 TMRS-Employer Contribution 0.00%

0.00 0.00 5,175.00 5,175.00200-02-5821 Major Equipment 0.00%

0.00 0.00 1,813.68

1,618.91200-02-5754 Social Security - Employer Paid 0.00%

0.00 0.00 366.78 366.78200-02-5755 Medicare Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 1,618.91

375.00200-02-5646 Janitorial 0.00%

0.00 0.00 25,295.40 25,295.40200-02-5751 Salaries/Wages Expense 0.00%

0.00 0.00 375.00

30,904.19200-02-5644 Professional Fees 54.06%

0.00 0.00 10,350.00 10,350.00200-02-5645 Engineering - WWTP 0.00%

4,094.50 36,370.81 67,275.00

2,380.50200-02-5642 Permits 0.00%

0.00 0.00 1,035.00 1,035.00200-02-5643 Permitting/Legal - Discharge 0.00%

0.00 0.00 2,380.50

500.00200-02-5611 Legal Notices/Publications 0.00%

1,965.00 3,433.75 25,875.00 22,441.25200-02-5641 Legal Fees 13.27%

0.00 0.00 500.00

125.64200-02-5201 Computer Maintenance 75.72%

0.00 5,643.41 10,867.50 5,224.09200-02-5331 Computer - Software & Updates 51.93%

132.54 391.86 517.50

70,000.00200-02-5122 Blanco CTSRCO 2019 0.00%

0.00 0.00 42,647.00 42,647.00200-02-5127 Blanco CTSRCO 2019 - Interest E  0.00%

0.00 0.00 70,000.00

419,109.13200-02-5070 INFRAMARK 34.16%

0.00 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00200-02-5121 Blanco CTSRCO 2017B 0.00%

53,739.33 217,415.87 636,525.00

300.00200-02-5058 Bond Agency Fees-CTSRCO 2019 0.00%

28,936.23 117,257.73 310,500.00 193,242.27200-02-5060 Garbage 37.76%

0.00 0.00 300.00

27,479.00 27,479.00200-02-5031 Blanco CTSRCO 2017B - Interest  0.00%

0.00 350.00 350.00 0.00200-02-5053 Bond Agent Fees CTSRCO 2017B 100.00%

200 - Enterprise Fund          Sewer

0.00 0.00

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Revenue Summary

Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Expense Totals 7.52% 819,831.7241,976.76 66,675.51 886,507.23

15,000.00 0.00% 15,000.00

Interest Expense 0.00 0.00 188,286.23 0.00% 188,286.23

Other Expenses 0.00 0.00

1,150.00 95.65% 50.00

Loans 41,976.76 65,575.51 682,071.00 9.61% 616,495.49

Bond Agent Fees 0.00 1,100.00

43.72% 493,771.17302,303.51 383,571.21 877,342.38

865,957.38 44.05% 484,534.17

Interest Income 704.01 2,148.00 11,385.00 18.87% 9,237.00

Ad Valorem Tax Revenue 301,599.50 381,423.21

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual300 - I & S Fund

 1



Ad Valorem Tax Revenue

Ad Valorem Tax Revenue Totals

Interest Income

Interest Income Totals

Revenue Totals 493,771.1743.72%877,342.38383,571.21302,303.51

18.87%11,385.00 9,237.00300-4805 Interest Income

9,237.00704.01 2,148.00 11,385.00 18.87%

704.01 2,148.00

103.50300-4013 Current Overages

484,534.17301,599.50 381,423.21 865,957.38 44.05%

0.00 0.00 0.00%103.50

432.25300-4005 Delinquent Penalty (I&S)

396.12 5,189.56 100.28%5,175.00 (14.56)300-4006 Delinquent I&S

47.53 602.75 58.24%1,035.00

2,898.00300-4003 Current Penalty (I & S)

54.17 477.14 30.73%1,552.50 1,075.36300-4004 Delinquent Interest (I&S)

0.00 0.00 0.00%2,898.00

478,901.12300-4001 Current I&S

0.00 0.00 0.00%1,138.50 1,138.50300-4002 Current Interest (I &S)

301,101.68 375,153.76 43.93%854,054.88

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual300 - I & S Fund

 1



300 - I & S Fund          water

Bond Agent Fees
Interest Expense
Loans
Other Expenses

water Totals

300 - I & S Fund          Sewer

Loans

Sewer Totals

300 - I & S Fund          Non-Department

Bond Agent Fees
Interest Expense
Loans

Non-Department Totals

Expense Total 7.52% 819,831.7241,976.76 886,507.23

0.00 257,331.00

66,675.51

750.00 0.29% 256,581.00

0.00% 11,831.000.00 11,831.00
0.00 0.00% 245,000.000.00 245,000.00

0.00 500.00
0.00

750.00 150.00% (250.00)

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

26.53% 181,621.9941,976.76 247,197.50

41,976.76 247,197.50

65,575.51

65,575.51 26.53% 181,621.99

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

0.09% 381,628.730.00 381,978.73

0.00 15,000.00

350.00

0.00 0.00% 15,000.00

0.00% 176,455.230.00 176,455.23
0.00 0.00% 189,873.500.00 189,873.50

0.00 650.00
0.00

350.00 53.85% 300.00

City of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

2/6/2026 1:13:35 PM

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



water Totals 0.09% 381,628.730.00 350.00 381,978.73

89,873.50300-01-5128 Certificates of Obligation Series 2 0.00%

0.00 0.00 91,138.23 91,138.23300-01-5129 Certificates of Obligation Series 2   0.00%

0.00 0.00 89,873.50

50,096.00300-01-5117 Blanco CTSRCO 2020 - Interest E  0.00%

0.00 0.00 35,221.00 35,221.00300-01-5126 Blanco CTSRCO 2017A - Interest  0.00%

0.00 0.00 50,096.00

100,000.00300-01-5054 CIP Water 2017A (L1000633) - P 0.00%

0.00 0.00 15,000.00 15,000.00300-01-5056 WTP 2020 (L1001127) - Principal 0.00%

0.00 0.00 100,000.00

300.00300-01-5051 Bond Agent Fees-Wilmington Tru 0.00%

0.00 350.00 350.00 0.00300-01-5052 Bond Agent Fees CTSRCO Water   100.00%

0.00 0.00 300.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used300 - I & S Fund          water

 1



Sewer Totals 26.53% 181,621.9941,976.76 65,575.51 247,197.50

47,197.50 (18,378.01)300-02-5059 Lift Station 2023 - Interest Only A 138.94%

0.00 0.00 200,000.00 200,000.00300-02-5065 Lift Station 2023 - Principal 0.00%

300 - I & S Fund          Sewer

41,976.76 65,575.51

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% Budget 
Used

 1



Non-Department Totals

Expense Totals 41,976.76 819,831.727.52%886,507.2366,675.51

0.29% 256,581.000.00 750.00 257,331.00

500.00300-06-5034 Bond Agent Fees CO Series 2024 0.00%

0.00 750.00 0.00 (750.00)300-06-5035 Bond Agent Fees CTRCO 2024A S 0.00%

0.00 0.00 500.00

11,831.00 11,831.00300-06-5032 2015 Series - (TIB) Interest 0.00%

0.00 0.00 245,000.00 245,000.00300-06-5033 2015 Series - (TIB) Principal 0.00%

300 - I & S Fund          Non-Department

0.00 0.00

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% Budget 
Used

 1



Revenue Summary

Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Expense Totals

1,811.25 0.00% 1,811.25

0.00 0.00 1,811.25 0.00% 1,811.25

Services 0.00 0.00

19.34% 13,358.07717.47 3,201.93 16,560.00

8,797.50 14.77% 7,497.78

Interest Income 458.54 1,902.21 7,762.50 24.51% 5,860.29

Court Fines and Fees 258.93 1,299.72

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual400 - Municipal Court Fund

 1



Court Fines and Fees

Court Fines and Fees Totals

Interest Income

Interest Income Totals

Revenue Totals 13,358.0719.34%16,560.003,201.93717.47

24.51%7,762.50 5,860.29400-4805 Interest Income

5,860.29458.54 1,902.21 7,762.50 24.51%

458.54 1,902.21

(1,041.10)400-4312 Mun Court Svc Fee Retained

7,497.78258.93 1,299.72 8,797.50 14.77%

193.90 1,041.10 0.00%0.00

4,012.75400-4301 CTF (Court Technology Fund - 

32.39 131.37 2.82%4,657.50 4,526.13400-4307 MCBS (Municipal Court Building 
  

32.64 127.25 3.07%4,140.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual400 - Municipal Court Fund

 1



400 - Municipal Court Fund          Court Fun

Services

Court Fund Totals

Expense Total 1,811.250.00 1,811.250.00 0.00%

0.00% 1,811.250.00 1,811.25

0.00 1,811.25

0.00

0.00 0.00% 1,811.25

City of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

2/6/2026 1:13:35 PM

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Court Fund Totals

Expense Totals 0.00 1,811.250.00%1,811.250.00

1,811.25400-04-5855 Municipal Court Technology Fund 0.00%

0.00 0.00 1,811.25 0.00% 1,811.25

0.00 0.00 1,811.25

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used400 - Municipal Court Fund          Court Fun

 1



Revenue Summary

Revenue Totals

0.00 0.00% (1,791.66)

334.79 1,791.66 0.00 0.00% (1,791.66)

Not Categorized 334.79 1,791.66

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

401 - Consolidated Court Security and 
Technology

 1



Not Categorized

Not Categorized Totals

Revenue Totals (1,791.66)0.00%0.001,791.66334.79

(1,791.66)401-4300 Consolidated Court Security and 

(1,791.66)334.79 1,791.66 0.00 0.00%

334.79 1,791.66 0.00%0.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual

401 - Consolidated Court Security and 
Technology

 1



Revenue Summary

Revenue Totals

Expense Summary

Expense Totals

107,650.00 15.19% 91,301.00

15,600.00 16,349.00 107,650.00 15.19% 91,301.00

Community Aide and Events 15,600.00 16,349.00

25.00% 92,614.515,812.89 30,873.99 123,488.50

112,103.50 26.77% 82,094.54

Interest Income 114.84 865.03 11,385.00 7.60% 10,519.97

Tax Revenue 5,698.05 30,008.96

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Annual
Budget

YTD
Actual

% of
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual500 - Hotel/Motel Fund

 1



Tax Revenue

Tax Revenue Totals

Interest Income

Interest Income Totals

Revenue Totals 92,614.5125.00%123,488.5030,873.995,812.89

10,519.97500-4805 Interest Income

10,519.97114.84 865.03 11,385.00 7.60%

114.84 865.03 7.60%11,385.00

82,094.545,698.05 30,008.96 112,103.50 26.77%

81,991.04500-4130 Hotel Occupancy Tax

0.00 0.00 0.00%103.50 103.50500-4140 Hotel Occupancy Interest

5,698.05 30,008.96 26.79%112,000.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Current
Month Actual

Annual
Budget

Budget 
Remaining

% of
Budget

YTD
Actual500 - Hotel/Motel Fund

 1



500 - Hotel/Motel Fund          Non-Departm

Community Aide and Events

Non-Department Totals

Expense Total 91,301.0015,600.00 107,650.0016,349.00 15.19%

15.19% 91,301.0015,600.00 107,650.00

15,600.00 107,650.00

16,349.00

16,349.00 15.19% 91,301.00

City of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

2/6/2026 1:13:35 PM

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used

 1



Non-Department Totals

Expense Totals 15,600.00 91,301.0015.19%107,650.0016,349.00

15.19% 91,301.0015,600.00 16,349.00 107,650.00

2,000.00500-06-5151 Keep Blanco Beautiful 0.00%

0.00 0.00 10,000.00 10,000.00500-06-5152 Keep Blanco Beautiful: Streetscap 0.00%

0.00 0.00 2,000.00

2,500.00500-06-5102 Blanco Historic Preservation 0.00%

15,600.00 16,349.00 93,150.00 76,801.00500-06-5105 HOT Funds Distribution 17.55%

0.00 0.00 2,500.00

2/6/2026 1:13 PMCity of Blanco
Financial Statement
As of January 31, 2026

Budget 
Remaining

Current
Month Actual

YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget

% Budget 
Used500 - Hotel/Motel Fund          Non-Departm

 1



 
 

STAFF 
POLICE 

DEPARTMENT 
  



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief’s Monthly Report 

January 2026 

 
Jerry Thornhill,  

Chief of Police 
 
 

 

Disclosure 

 
Many data collection sources were utilized to compile the presented information to include Record 

Management System reporting and administrative logs. In our continued effort to report accurate and 

transparent numbers, the department discloses that the RMS system is continuously updated, and reports 

run at various times, sometimes producing different results. Care should be taken when comparing this 

monthly report to other data reports as different data collection methods and data sources may be used. 

The data provided is for informational use only.  

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

Chief’s Monthly Report — January 2026 

 

 

Department News 

 

New BPD Officers Aguilar and Moreno have been sworn in successfully and have completed their 

origination week and are now in Phase 1 of field training program under the direction and 

supervision of Patrol Cpl. Salazar.  The Blanco Police Department is also pleased to announce that 

Officer Robert Butler has returned to work for the Blanco Police Department in a reserve capacity 

where his 45 plus years of federal and state law enforcement experience and training will be fully 

utilized to assist in criminal investigations as well as in firearms training.  

 

In addition to being fully staffed once again, the Chief is happy to report that the grant application 

for Community Improvement has been successfully filed and received by the Lower Colorado 

River Authority (LCRA) and is now under review.   

 

As the new year begins, departmental activity reflects a steady operational tempo with a slight 

overall reduction in calls for service and traffic stops compared to the prior month. Enforcement 

efforts showed a shift toward warnings over citations, while arrests and warrant activity increased. 

Motor vehicle collisions rose notably, reinforcing the continued need for proactive traffic safety 

efforts. These figures represent reported activity and workload, not verified offenses or final case 

outcomes. 

 

Community Events & Involvement 

 

While there has been fewer community events this month to report, the recent ice storm led to a 

notable uptick in accident reports most of which were minor and involved single vehicle damages. 

 

Administrative Operations 

 

o Chief Activities 

The Chief has continued his efforts to work side by side with VC3 to oversee the critical 

repairs to the police department’s IT system and communications infrastructure which has 

been restored and should not cause any additional delays in workflow for the seeable future.  

 

o Records Requests 

The Police Department received and fulfilled a total of 10 records requests in January 2026. 



Department Statistics 
 

Patrol Operations 

 

Total Calls for Service Dec. 2025 +/- Previous Month 

-In city 336 12.5% Decrease 

-Out of city 2  100% Increase 

Agency Assist 1 100% Increase 

It is important to note these statistics represent reported Calls for Service and not verified offenses or incidents 

 

Traffic Stops Dec. 2025 +/- Previous Month 

Total Vehicles Stopped 158 11.7% Decrease 

Resulting Citations 28 33.3% Decrease 

Resulting Warnings 193 44.0% Increase 

Arrests Dec. 2025 +/- Previous Month 

On view 4     33.3% Increase 

Warrants 4    300% Increase 

Motor Vehicle Collisions 9   125% Increase 
 

Fleet Updates 

 

Fleet IN COMMISSION 3  

Fleet IN REPAIR 2 212 & 201 

Fleet OUT OF COMMISSION 2 (New Units) 251 & 252 (Upfitting)  

 

Criminal Investigations Division 

 

Number of Reports Taken Total +/- Previous Month 

-resulting in offense report 3 62.5% Decrease 

-resulting in informational/other report 23 15.0% Increase 

Offenses Filed   

-felony 1     No Increase / Decrease 

-misdemeanor 3 50.0% Increase 

 

Detailed Statistics 

 

Total Traffic Stops: 158 Total Violations: 193 

 

Traffic Violations by Type Resulting in Citation Resulting in Warning 

Moving Violation 28 127 

Non-Traffic Violation 3 0 

School Zone Violation 0 0 
*Some traffic stops resulted in multiple citations/warnings if the officer addressed more than one violation.  

 

 



19%

81%

CITATIONS VS. WARNINGS

0

500

1000

1500

2000

2500

3000

3500

4000

4500

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Monthly Mileage Statistics

Arrests Made by Month 

 

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Adult 6            

Juvenile 0            

Total 6            

 

Calls for Service by Month 

 

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Total 339            

 

Offenses/Incident Reports by Month  

 

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Total 26            

 

Motor Vehicle Collisions by Month 

 

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Total 9            
 

Miles Patrolled by Month 

 

Month Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 

Total 4273            



Monthly Report of Incident by Incident Type 

 

Call Type No. of Calls 

Unclassified  4 

911 Open Line 2 

Administrative 1 

Alarm - Business 4 

Animal Bite 2 

Animal Complaint 6 

ASSAULT 1 

Assist Other Agency 1 

Assist Public 15 

Business Check 9 

Cardiac Problems 1 

CP 49 

Disturbance - Verbal 1 

Domestic Violent 1 

Drugs 1 

Electrical Hazard 2 

Explosion 1 

Follow Up 5 

Fraud 1 

Funeral Escort 2 

Harassment 2 

Headache 1 

Informational 6 

Lost Property 1 

Motorist Assist 5 

MVA - Injury 1 

MVA - Non Injury 6 

MVA - Unknown Injury 2 

Reckless Driver 5 

Respiratory Arrest / Not Breathing 1 

Robbery 1 

Standby 2 

Structure Fire - Residential 2 

Suicidal Person 1 

Suspicious Circumstance 6 

Suspicious Person 4 

Suspicious Vehicle 4 

Theft 1 

Traffic Hazard 4 

Traffic Stop 162 

Trespass 2 

Vegetation Fire 1 



Welfare Check 11 

Total: 339 
 

*Note, numbers reflect the incident type the call was dispatched as, not necessarily what the incident type 

and/or offense was determined to be. Additionally, some incidents required multiple incident codes and can 

be listed under many categories.  

 

Summary 

 

As the department enters the new year, staffing and organizational readiness remain strong. 

Officers Aguilar and Moreno were successfully sworn in and have completed orientation, 

transitioning into Phase I of the field training program under the supervision of Patrol Corporal 

Salazar. Additionally, the return of Officer Robert Butler in a reserve capacity brings more than 

45 years of federal and state law enforcement experience back to the department, strengthening 

investigative capabilities and enhancing firearms training efforts. 

 

With the department once again fully staffed, progress continues on key administrative and 

strategic initiatives. The Community Improvement Grant application has been successfully 

submitted to the Lower Colorado River Authority and is currently under review. This represents 

an important opportunity to secure additional resources that will directly benefit departmental 

operations and community service delivery. 

 

Operational activity for the reporting period reflected a steady pace, with a modest decrease in 

overall calls for service and traffic stops compared to the previous month. Enforcement activity 

showed a noticeable shift toward warnings rather than citations, while both on-view and warrant 

arrests increased. Motor vehicle collisions rose significantly, driven in part by adverse weather 

conditions, underscoring the continued need for proactive traffic safety and enforcement measures. 

 

Community engagement during the month was limited due to fewer scheduled events; however, 

the recent ice storm resulted in an increase in accident responses, most of which involved minor, 

single-vehicle incidents. Officers remained actively engaged in public assistance, motorist support, 

and welfare checks, reinforcing the department’s commitment to community safety during 

hazardous conditions. 

 

From an administrative standpoint, the Chief continued working closely with VC3 to oversee 

critical repairs to the department’s IT and communications infrastructure. These systems have now 

been restored and are expected to function reliably without further disruption. In addition, the 

department processed and fulfilled ten records requests during January, maintaining transparency 

and compliance with public information requirements. 

 

Overall, the data reflects a department that is operationally stable, responsive to community needs, 

and focused on continuous improvement. While fluctuations were observed in enforcement 

activity and collision rates. Moving forward, the department remains committed to maintaining 

public safety, supporting officer development, and strengthening infrastructure and resources to 

meet the evolving needs of the Blanco community. 

 



 
 

INFRAMARK 
DANNY MALDONADO 

 
  



December 2025 Monthly Report   

 
 

 

 
   
City of Blanco, TX  December 2025 Monthly Report 
01/16/2026 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



December 2025 Monthly Report   

 

 

 

01/16/2026 

Warren Escovy 
300 Pecan St. 
Blanco, TX 78606 

 

Re: Letter of Transmittal – December 2025 Monthly Client Operations Report 

Dear Mr. Escovy, 
 
This report provides a representation of the overall operations, financials, and 
maintenance for the month reported. 

If you have questions or comments, please feel free to call 830-660-1522. 

Sincerely,  

 
Danny Maldonado 
Project Manager 
dmaldonado2@inframark.com 

  

 
 

mailto:dmaldonado2@inframark.com


December 2025 Monthly Report   

Summary  
All reporting and samples completed for December 2025.  

Inframark continues to improve operations, teamwork, and build Clear Partnerships with 
the City of Blanco.   

Noteworthy Events   
o Several leaks repaired throughout the month 

o The Wastewater Plant is doing great! 

o We do have some outstanding Violations with TCEQ on past issues at the 
WWTP. I am working on getting those resolved at soonest. 

 

Daily Operations Meeting Schedule 
City of Blanco Yard – 455 Jones Ave  At 07:30 am 

 

We would like to welcome the city administrator, city staff or council members to attend 
this meeting at their leisure. We discuss plant operations, health & safety, maintenance 
requirements, as well as opportunities for operational efficiency improvements.  We also 
train and refresh on local processes and procedures. 

 

Critical Issues / Maintenance and Repair 
Please review the following for all items that could have a critical impact on operations: 

WWTP ATS Circuit Board 
For Generator Potential Compliance $15k 

12/30/2023 
HOLT CAT rep 
site visit Dec 

18, 2025 

Searching for the part and 
quote 

Cielo Springs Booster Pumps Failure to supply water $14k 07/23/2024 
9/30/25 

Received in January-
pumps have been 

received – We attempted 
to replace these  

Jan 7, 2026 we got BP 2 
installed and operational 

Church GST VFD for Booster Pump  $14k 08/15/25 We have a spare at the 
shop 

 



December 2025 Monthly Report   

Financial Update

 
 
Wastewater Operations & Collections 

 
WWTP Effluent: (As asked by CIAMAC) 

 
 
 
 



December 2025 Monthly Report   

WWTP Capacity: 
Formula:  Permitted capacity – Current Month or Yearly Avg = X.XXX/0.225 = % 

December 

0.225 –0.104 = 0.121/ 0.225 = 54% Capacity  

Yearly 

0.225-0.117 = 0.108/0.225 = 48% Available 

*When we reach 25% available we need to start having a plan for expansion 

Irrigation Operations 

 

Water Plant Operations & Distribution – (Added Church 
and Cielo Springs per CIAMAC)

 



December 2025 Monthly Report   

Water Loss**This is the best representation to date that we have of the water 
loss!

 

Read date Meter Read 
Previous 

Month

Meter Read 
This Month

Production Gallons 
(Stallion Tank Meter and/or 

SWTP Meter)
 Metered Billed Gallons Metered Unbilled Gallons - 

(City Hall, Police Dept, City 
Meter 5, Bindsiel Park, City 

properties, etc)

LEAKSFLUSHING
FIRE DEPT

PALOMINO 
LINE

Total 
Metered

Difference 
Prod/Metered Difference 

Prod/Billed %
TOTAL Unbilled Gallons 

Total 
Authorized 

Consumption
Gallons

Total Water 
Loss Gallons

Water 
Loss %

2/13/2025736818000745266000
8,448,000

6,439,700
No Data

-
-

-
-

6,439,700
2008300

23.77%
0

6,439,700
2,008,300

24%
3/14/2025745266000754145000

8,879,000
5,687,400

No Data
-

-
-

-
5,687,400

3191600
35.95%

0
5,687,400

3,191,600
36%

4/14/2025754145000762784000
8,639,000

6,185,600
No Data

-
-

-
-

6,185,600
2453400

28.40%
0

6,185,600
2,453,400

28%
5/15/2025762784000771936000

9,152,000
6,090,900

No Data
-

-
-

-
6,090,900

3061100
33.45%

0
6,090,900

3,061,100
33%

6/11/2025771936000780359000
8,423,000

5,657,700
No Data

-
-

-
-

5,657,700
2765300

32.83%
0

5,657,700
2,765,300

33%
7/15/2025780359000790611000

10,252,000
6,363,700

No Data
-

-
-

-
6,363,700

3888300
37.93%

0
6,363,700

3,888,300
38%

8/14/2025790611000799622000
9,011,000

7,200,800
No Data

205000
200000

0
9000

7,200,800
1810200

20.09%
414000

7,614,800
1,396,200

15%
9/15/2025799622000808982000

9,360,000
6,973,000

869000
481000

210000
13500

0
7,842,000

1518000
16.22%

1573500
8,546,500

813,500
9%

10/15/2025808982000817978000
8,996,000

7,328,600
826300

234800
20000

3400
15,000

8,154,900
841100

9.35%
1099500

8,428,100
567,900

6%
11/14/2025817978000825798000

7,820,000
6,419,400

660000
240600

165000
9700

18500
7,079,400

740600
9.47%

1093800
7,513,200

306,800
4%

12/15/2025825798000834342000
8,544,000

6,116,600
461000

114000
200000

1050
22800

6,577,600
1966400

23.01%
798850

6,915,450
1,628,550

19%
1/15/2026834342000841920000

7,578,000
                                   

6,116,600
                           

663600
81500

155000
3150

25000
6780200

797800
11%

928250
7044850

533150
7%

Yearly Average 
Water Loss %

24.59%
-

-
22,614,100

21%



December 2025 Monthly Report   

Leaks for December 2025 

 

 

 
 
 



December 2025 Monthly Report   

PotHoles  
• We have material and have begun filling potholes 

 

Health & Safety 
• No issues to report 

                             

Personnel 
• Inframark continues to invest in its personnel through training and development.  

 

Looking Ahead 
• Continued discussions with CIAMC on options to better the infrastructure, and  

which needs attention foremost. 

 



 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 

ITEM #1 
 

  



1 | P a g e  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s – J a n u a r y  1 3 ,  2 0 2 6  
 

REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE GOVERNING BODY OF 

THE CITY OF BLANCO 
 

Meeting Minutes 
January 13, 2026 

 

A special meeting of the City Council, City of Blanco, Texas was held on January 13, 2026, at 6:00 pm at the Byars 
Building, 308 Pecan Street, Blanco, Texas. 

The meeting was called to order at 6:00 pm by Mayor Candy Cargill, followed by roll call announcing a quorum was 
present.  The Council members present: Mayor Cargill, Mayor Pro-Tem Moore and Council Members McClung, 
Thrailkill, Behrends, and Moses. 

City staff present: Warren Escovy, City Administrator; Jose Martinez, Finance Director; Jerry Thornhill, Police 
Chief; and Callie Ann Alex, City Secretary. 

Mayor Cargill and Council Member McClung announced Maria Guerrero as the winner of the $200 Amazon Gift 
Card. The Gift Card was based on a random drawing of participants who submitted responses for the Show Us Your 
Blanco survey in support of the City of Blanco Comprehensive Master Plan.  

The Invocation and the Pledge of Allegiance was led by Pastor Carlos Cloyd of the Blanco Methodist Church.   

Mayor Cargill then made the following public announcements: 

• The Blanco County Judge, acting together with the Blanco County Commissioners Court has established a 
burn ban by Executive Order. This Order is dated 13 January, 2026.  

• Governor Greg Abbot, of the State of Texas, has proclaimed January 2026 to be Crime Stoppers Month.  
• Friday, January 16th, Mayor Cargill is hosting an All Committee Chair luncheon and meeting at the Byars 

Building at twelve o’clock.   
• She presented Certificates of Appreciation for participation on the City of Blanco float for the 2025 

Christmas parade to the following individuals: 
o Callie Ann Alex 
o Brant Alex 
o Anezka Alex 
o EJ Bongard 
o Ryan Moses 

o Everly Moses 
o McKayla 

Thornhill 
o Haylee Hartman 
o Keith Hartman 

o Kolby Hartman 
o Mayor Candy 

Cargill 
o Warren Escovy 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

• Jay Palmer spoke in favor of TXDoT Relief Route Study Resolution No. 2026-R-001. He shared the story of 
a project in El Paso that was shelved, but then enacted with a new City Council and Mayor.  

• Rhetta Martin discussed the history of Streetscape and the Comprehensive Master Plan.  
• Ken Welch spoke in favor of moving forward with the Streetscape plan to bury the power lines. He stated it 

is urgent to do it now since the sidewalk reconstruction and design is already planned.  
• John Sone presented the situation of his property’s annexation and his submitted disannexation request.  sees 

the change in the State legislation as a positive way out for cities facing a defective annexation process. He 
also discussed his negative opinions regarding the recent action by Council to impose a fee for filing a 
disannexation or ETJ Removal petition.  

• Elissa Barker spoke on the Planned Development Agreement (PDD) for the “Judge’s Hill” project on San 
Saba. She is happy with steps taken, but is still uncomfortable with a parking lot next to a R3 home. She 
would love a green space, but is then concerned with how that will affect cars seeking to park.  

• Raymond Lightfoot believes that if a bypass is inevitable for Blanco, then he would like it outside of the City 
and the ETJ.  



2 | P a g e C i t y  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s – J a n u a r y  1 3 ,  2 0 2 6

• Stephanie Wright commented that she is in favor of burying the electric lines and would love to preserve the
historic look of the downtown Blanco. She believes it may also increase the safety of the City.

• Mike Ethridge feels he has the most at stake with the TXDoT Relief Route bypass. He has over 100 acres
and the bypass, as projected, would cut through the middle. He stated it would go through the natural spring,
his house, and his cattle pens. This would also leave most of his property as floodplain.

• Mike Smith spoke in opposition to the approval of Esther’s Haus at 303 Chandler Street as a new Short-Term
Rental, or STR (Old Business Item 2). He referenced the STR ordinance and the limiting of STRs at 10%. He
stated if this STR is approved, it will leave that city block at 27% STRs.

• Wayne Gosnell wrote a letter to be read aloud for City Council. The letter addressed the Resolution for the
TXDoT Relief Routes proposed in City Council 1.13.26 Agenda. He’s concerned with the verbiage utilized
and made some suggestions. These suggestions included editing the 10th Whereas statement, striking
paragraph three, and emphasizing an unfavorable relief route is preferable to no relief route.

• Martha Gosnell wrote a letter to be read aloud for City Council. The letter addressed the potential placement
of the powerlines underground in Blanco’s Historical District. She gave a background of all the work that has
gone into this project and stated this would be a beneficial action for the City.

• Eric Moses wrote a letter to be read aloud for City Council. The letter addressed his property and his
disannexation petition. He gave a history of his property, the joint disannexation petition he participated in
2024, and his concerns over actions and inactions he has felt have been taken by the City. He concluded by
calling Council to approve his disannexation request.

STAFF PRESENTATIONS: 
1. City Hall, Warren Escovy, City Administrator announced the following items: The water plant is awaiting a

blending permit and still has an anticipated April 2026 launch date. The bid opening for the Northbound 281
sewer extension is scheduled for January 15, with a tentative completion timeline of May 2026. The
Candidate filing date for the local General election is January 14th through February 13th. He spoke on the
$200,000 grant and the striping plan. Additionally, there will be a workshop for a potential utility rate
increase during the next Special City Council meeting on January 27, 2026.

2. City Hall, Jose Martinez, Finance Director, shared that the Workman’s Compensation audit was completed.
The City is continuing the work on the audit and is on track to meet the March 1st deadline.

3. Police Department, Chief Thornhill- October Monthly Report- Chief Thornhill announced that the Police
Department is onboarding 1 Patrol Officer and 2 Reserve Officers. The Department has received their new
vehicles, one of which he brought to the meeting in case anyone would like to view it. He addressed the
ongoing communications issue due to weather damage that impacted their building, but wanted to reassure
the public that 911 was unaffected. The Radar signs were discussed; one has been ordered, and another order
can be placed for the second one. The signs cannot be placed until TXDoT approval is received since they
will be placed on 281.

4. Inframark, Danny Maldonado- December had reports of significant water leaks, including one at Bindseil
Park which required two days to repair. One pump has been installed at Cielo Springs. It was estimated to
cost over $20,000; however, Inframark was able to complete it for $1,600.

CONSENT AGENDA:  The following items may be acted upon in one motion.  No separate discussion or action is 
necessary unless requested by the Mayor or a Councilmember, in which those items will be pulled for separate 
consideration.   

1. Approval of Minutes from the December 9th, 2025 Regular Meeting
A motion was made by Mayor Pro Tem Dennis Moore, Jr. to approve the consent agenda item. Seconded by
Council Member Thrailkill. All in favor and motion carried unanimously.



3 | P a g e  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s – J a n u a r y  1 3 ,  2 0 2 6  
 

NEW BUSINESS: Consider, discuss, and take appropriate action on the following: 
1. Discussion and possible action for the City to come up with a plan to place powerlines underground in 

the Historic District and to review a proposed agreement with PEC to develop such a plan.  Before 
Pedernales Electric Company (PEC) can give any estimates or plans it will require $40,000 to inspect and 
develop a design. The actual cost of the project will be presented at a later time. Ken Welch, Streetscape, asked 
if City Council had a desire to place the powerlines underground. If the desire was there, this was an opportune 
time, as the sidewalks are being redone. He also described the establishment of a Streetscape fund; monies to be 
utilized large scale purchases. He requested volunteers for Streetscape for the City’s assistance in networking 
with PEC and negotiate the costs of the project. Council Member McClung motioned to approve the conceptual 
goal of moving power lines and directed City Staff to negotiate with PEC and return to City Council with a 
report. Seconded by Council Member Moses. All in favor and motion carried unanimously.  

2. Consideration, Discussion, and Take Possible Action on TxDOT Relief Route Study Resolution No. 2026-
R-001. Tim Tuggey referenced Wayne Gosnell’s letter read during public comments. He stated that paragraph 
3 was not essential. Council Member McClung shared his view that he is in favor of the Relief Route being 
within the City/ ETJ. Council Member Moses fears the Resolution will not be viewed with as much 
significance if it is not an unanimous vote. Mayor Cargill wants to continue to propose the TXDoT Relief 
Route topic to keep the City of Blanco on TXDoT’s agenda. Council Member Moses motions to approve 
Resolution No. 2026-R-001 on the contingency that the 10th Whereas statement is deleted and there is a 
rewording of paragraph 3 to begin with and include “in any event we support and urge continuous and 
immediate…”. Council Member Thrailkill seconded. Motion Passed 4-1, with Council Member McClung 
opposed.  

3. Discussion, and Take Possible Action on Ordinance 2026-O-001 as an amendment to Ordinance 2025-O-
008 Disannexation and ETJ Fee. Mayor Cargill moved this Item to the Executive Session. 

4. Consideration, Discussion, and Possible Action on Petition for Disannexation by Eric Moses. Mayor 
Cargill moved this Item to the Executive Session. 

 
OLD BUSINESS: Consider, discuss, and take appropriate action on the following: 

1. Consideration, Discussion, and Take Possible Action on Approval on of the Planned Development 
District for Judges Hill, located at 172 San Saba Ct Blanco, Texas 78606 (Blanco Station Blk 01 Lot 01 & 
02), Blanco, Texas (Property Owner:  Cory Pavlica, CPGC Services, LLC). Laura Mueller, lawyer for the 
project, spoke on behalf of the PDD. She stated that a PDD holds them to a specific guideline which they can’t 
deviate from. One big change to note is the reduction of parking to allow a green space buffer for neighboring 
housing; additional parking will be across the street at Real Ale. Brandon Melland, third party development 
review assistant, spoke on the PDD report and the perimeter border between residents and the property. Council 
Member Behrends confirmed the retaining wall was a significant height, except for lot one, which belongs to 
Elissa Barker. Elissa Barker was present to state that a 6-foot fence would be satisfactory to her since the 
parking had been relocated. Council Member Moses moved to approve the Planned Development District 
(PDD) as presented in new plan with 6-foot resident border fence, Fire Marshal approved gate, San Saba Road 
Maintenance Plan, and Real Ale parking agreement. Mayor Pro Tem Dennis Moore, Jr. seconded. All in favor 
and motion carried unanimously.  

2. Consideration, Discussion, and Take Possible Action on Approval of New Short-Term Rental, Esther’s 
Haus at 303 Chandler St. (PITTSBURG , BLK 34 , LOT PT OF, ACRES 1.283), Blanco, Texas 
(Owner:  Trainer Street Enterprises LLC % Teresa Seidel) Council discussed that this location has already 
been in operation as an STR. Concerns were shared since that city block, if this were to be approved, would be 
at 30% STR saturation. City Secretary, Callie Ann Alex, did speak on how the resident was trying to file the 
correct way and ensure they are compliant with the City. Council Shared that while they always appreciate 
people taking correct measures, decisions have to be made based on established ordinances. Council Member 
Behrends motioned to deny the approval of new Short-Term Rental (STR), Esther’s Haus at 303 Chandler St. 
Council Member Thrailkill seconded. All in favor and motion carried unanimously.  

 
 



4 | P a g e  C i t y  C o u n c i l  M i n u t e s – J a n u a r y  1 3 ,  2 0 2 6  
 

3. Consideration, Discussion, and Take Possible Action on the 1988 Sales tax issue and a potential May 
2026 ballot referendum to repeal the current 0.5 allocation to offset local ad valorem taxes and possibly 
reimpose such allocation to support other lawful purposes. Council Member McClung went over the history 
of the sales tax issue and how any change will affect ad valorum tax credits. The date to call for an election is 
the 13th of February, and the date the ballot language is due is the 1st of March. Council Members shared the 
feedback they have received from the community, both in favor or against, and the overall desire to see this 
item placed on the ballot for vote. Council Member Moses emphasized his desire to meet with, educate, and 
gain feedback from citizens during public meetings and engagements. Council Member Moses motioned to 
place the 1988 sales tax issue on the ballot for the May election and develop language to be reviewed at the 
next City Council Meeting. Council Member McClung Seconded. Motion passed 4-1, with Council Member 
Thrailkill opposed.  

4. Consideration, Discussion and Take Possible Action on Approval on Reclaimed Water Agreement. 
Mayor Cargill tabled this Item for a future City Council Meeting.  

Closed Regular meeting at 9:08 pm and convened into Executive Session. 

Executive Session in accordance with Texas Government Code:  in accordance with the authority contained in 
the Texas Government Code, Sections 551.071, 551.072, and 551.074. 

1. Texas Government Code Section 551.071 (Consultation with City Attorney) and Section 1.05, Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct. Confer with City Attorney regarding legal issues associated with 
the Water Treatment Plant Project; Bids, Contract. Award and Notice to Proceed. 

2. Texas Government Code Sections 551.071 (Consultation with City Attorney) and Section 1.05, Texas 
Disciplinary Rules of Professional Conduct.  Confer with City Attorney regarding Pending Legal Matters 

Closed executive session at 10:20 pm and convened into regular meeting 
New Business Item 3: Discussion, and Take Possible Action on Ordinance 2026-O-001 as an amendment 
to Ordinance 2025-O-008 Disannexation and ETJ Fee. Council Member Moses motioned to approve 
Ordinance 2026-O-001 as an amendment to Ordinance 2025-O-008 Disannexation and ETJ Fee, with the 
correction on page 2 of $200 to $250. Council Member McClung seconded. All in favor and motion carries 
unanimously.  
New Business Item 4: Consideration, Discussion, and Possible Action on Petition for Disannexation by 
Eric Moses. Mayor Cargill tabled this Item until the January 27th Special City Council Meeting.  
New Motion: Council Member Moses motioned to revisit the Mobile Home Ordinance next regular City 
Council meeting and direct Council Member Thrailkill and City Staff to help revise and educate on potential 
changes. Seconded by Council Member Behrends. All in favor and motion passes unanimously.  

Adjournment: 
A motion was made by Council Member Moses to adjourn the meeting, seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Dennis 
Moore, Jr. All in favor, motion carries unanimously.  

The meeting was adjourned at 10:23 pm. 
  

 ___________________________________________ 
 Candy Cargill, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
________________________________   
Callie Ann Alex  
City Secretary 
 

These minutes were approved on the ________ day of ____________________, 2026. 
 



 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
ITEM #1 

 
  



City of Blanco 
General Election Order 2026 Page 1 of 5  

CITY OF BLANCO, TEXAS 

GENERAL ELECTION ORDER 

ORDINANCE 2026-O-003 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BLANCO, TEXAS, 
PROVIDING FOR THE HOLDING OF A GENERAL 
ELECTION ON MAY 2, 2026, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
ELECTING THREE (3) COUNCIL MEMBERS; AND 
PROVIDING DETAILS RELATING TO THE HOLDING OF 
THE ELECTION. 

WHEREAS, the laws of the State of Texas provide that on May 2, 2026, there shall be a 
general election for municipal officers; and 

WHEREAS, the term for the three (3) City Council Members At-Large are scheduled to 
expire at the next uniform election date. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BLANCO THAT: 

SECTION 1. ELECTION 

A. A General Election is called and ordered for May 2, 2026, at which election the qualified
voters of the City of Blanco may vote for the purpose of electing the three (3) City Council
Members At-Large.

B. Candidates for the above offices may file their application beginning at 8:00 a.m. January
14, 2026 and shall file their applications no later than 5:00 p.m. February 13 2026, on the
78th day before the date of the election, as provided in Sections 141.031 and 143.007 of the
Texas Election Code.  All candidates for the offices to be filled in the election to be held
on May 3, 2025, shall file their sworn application with the City Secretary of the City of
Blanco at City Hall, 300 Pecan Street, Blanco, Texas, said applications shall be on a form
as prescribed by the Election Code of the State of Texas.

The City Secretary shall note on the face of each application the date and time of its filing.
All applications shall include a clear reference to the office the candidate is seeking.



City of Blanco 
General Election Order 2026 Page 2 of 5  

C. The present boundaries of the City of Blanco shall constitute one election precinct.  The
polls shall be open for voting 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m. at some, or all, of the following
countywide polling places:

ELECTION DAY POLLING PLACES 

First Baptist Church 
1200 4th Street 

Blanco, TX 78606 

Good Shepherd Catholic Church 
285 281 Loop Road 

Johnson City, TX 78636 

Blanco County Courthouse Annex-Hoppe 
101 E. Cypress Street 

Johnson City, TX 78636 

Round Mountain Fire Department 
8480 US Highway 281 

Round Mountain, TX 78663 

Blanco County South Annex 
402 Blanco Avenue 
Blanco, TX 78606 

The names and addresses of polling locations will be determined by the contracted 
Elections Administrator and announced by the City Secretary. These final locations will 
be annotated on the Elections Notice posted no later than the 22nd of April, 2026.  

SECTION 2. APPOINTMENTS 

A. The Election Officer is authorized to appoint the Presiding Election Judge, and the
Alternate Presiding Election Judge. The Election Officer is authorized to appoint additional
alternates, if necessary.  The Presiding Judge at each polling place shall have the authority
to appoint no more than two (2) clerks to assist in the holding of the election, but in no
event serve as the early voting ballot board for the election and the Presiding Judge of the
election precinct shall also serve as the presiding officer of the Early Voting Ballot Board.
The Board shall process early voting results in accordance with the Texas Election Code.
Compensation for each Election Judge(s) and Clerks shall be in accordance with Section
32.091 and 32.092 of the Texas Elections Code.

B. The Election Officer is hereby appointed clerk for early voting.  The Election Officer is
authorized to appoint a deputy clerk or clerks for early voting in accordance with Chapter
83, Subchapter B of the Election Code.



City of Blanco 
General Election Order 2026 Page 3 of 5  

SECTION 3.   EARLY VOTING BY MAIL 

Blanco County Elections Officer shall serve as Early Voting Clerk for the purpose of receiving 
ballot applications for ballots to be voted by mail. Ballot applications submitted by mail shall be 
addressed to the City's Early Voting Clerk at the following address: 

Early Voting Clerk 
P. O. Box 13 

Johnson City, Texas 78636 

SECTION 4.  EARLY VOTING BY PERSONAL APPEARANCE 

A. The Election Officer shall serve as the Early Voting Clerk for early voting by personal
appearance. The Early Voting Clerk shall have the authority to designate such deputy early
voting clerks as may be necessary to staff the Early Voting Polling Place established under
this Order.

B. The place for early voting for the election shall be:

EARLY VOTING POLLING PLACE 

Blanco County Courthouse-Annex-Hoppe 
101 E. Cypress Street 

Johnson City, TX 78636 

Blanco County South Annex 
402 Blanco Avenue 
Blanco, TX 78606 

The names and addresses of polling locations will be determined by the contracted 
Elections Administrator and announced by the City Secretary. These final locations will 
be annotated on the Elections Notice posted no later than the 22nd of April, 2026.  

C. The election clerks shall keep the office open from 8:00 a.m. until 5:00 p.m., for early
voting on each day that which is not a Saturday, a Sunday, or an official state holiday,
beginning April 20, 2026, and continuing through May 02, 2026 for early voting by
personal appearance. The clerks shall not permit anyone to vote early by personal
appearance on any day which is not a regular working day for the Blanco County Elections
office, and under no circumstances shall they permit anyone to vote early by personal
appearance at any time when such office is not open to the public.  The Blanco County
Elections mailing address is P.O. Box 13, Johnson City, Texas, 78636 where ballot
applications and ballots voted by mail may be sent.  The early voting clerk shall maintain
a roster listing each person who votes early by personal appearance and each person to
whom a ballot to be voted by mail is sent, in accordance with the provisions of the Election
Code.  The roster shall be maintained in a form approved by the Secretary of State.



City of Blanco 
General Election Order 2026 Page 4 of 5  

SECTION 5.  CONDUCT OF ELECTION 

A. Electronic voting shall be used for the election, both in early voting and for voting on
election day, in accordance with the Election Code.  The use of at least one (1) voting
station that complies with Section 61.012 of the Texas Election Code, which provides a
practical and effective means for voters with physical disabilities to cast a secret ballot is
hereby authorized.

B. A central counting station is established at the place designated in Blanco County Annex-
Conference Room at 101 E. Cypress, Johnson City, TX 78636.   The Election Officer will
be appointed as the Central counting station manager and the Election Clerk will be
appointed as the Tabulation Supervisor.

C. All expenditures necessary for the conduct of the election, the purchase of materials, and
the employment of all election officials are hereby authorized in accordance with the
Election Code.  The Election Officer is hereby authorized and directed to furnish all
necessary election supplies to conduct the election.

D. The order in which the names of the candidates are to be printed on the ballot shall be
determined by a drawing by the City Secretary, as provided by Section 52.094 of the
Election Code.  The City Secretary shall post a notice in her office, at least seventy-two
(72) hours prior to the date on which the drawing is to be held, of the time and place of the
drawing, and shall also give personal notice to any candidate who makes written request
for such notice and furnishes to the City Secretary a self-addressed, stamped envelope.
Each candidate involved in the drawing, or a representative designated by such candidate,
shall have a right to be present and observe the drawing.

E. The three (3) City Council Member candidates receiving the highest number of votes shall
be declared elected to such positions.

F. Notice of this election shall be given in accordance with the provisions of the Election
Code.  The Mayor shall issue all necessary orders and writs for such election and returns
of the election shall be made to the City Secretary immediately after the closing of the
polls.

G. All election materials shall be printed in English and Spanish as required by Section
272.001 of the Texas Election Code.

H. The election shall be held in accordance with the applicable requirements of the Texas
Election Code.  If any provisions of this ordinance conflicts with a mandatory provision of
the Election Code, it is the intention of the City Council that the provision of the Election
Code shall control.



Page 5 of 5 

SECTION 6.   CANVASSING OF RETURNS 

The Election Officer shall make a written return of the Election Results to the City Council in 
accordance with the Election Code.  The City Council shall canvass the returns and declare the 
results of the Election in accordance with the Texas Election Code.  

SECTION 7.   AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE 

The Mayor of the City of Blanco is authorized to execute, and the City Secretary is authorized to 
attest this Ordinance on behalf of the City Council.  The Mayor is further authorized to do all other 
things legal and necessary in connection with the ordering, holding and consummation of the 
Election. 

SECTION 8.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

This Ordinance is effective immediately upon its passage and approval. 

SECTION 9.   SEVERABILITY 

Should any of the clauses, sentences, paragraphs, sections or parts of this Ordinance be deemed 
invalid, unconstitutional, or unenforceable by a court of law or administrative agency with 
jurisdiction over the matter, such action shall not be construed to affect any other valid portion of 
this Ordinance. 

SECTION 10.   PROPER NOTICE & MEETING 

A quorum of the City Council was present at the meeting at which this Ordinance was adopted. 
The meeting was open to the public and public notice of the time, place and purpose of said 
meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551 of the Texas Government 
Code. 

PASSED & APPROVED this, the ______ day of___________________, 2026, by a vote of 
____ ayes,  ____  nays, ____ abstentions of the City Council of the City of Blanco, Texas. 

CITY OF BLANCO, TEXAS 

____________________________________
Candy Cargill, Mayor 

ATTEST:  

_________________________________ 
Haylee Hartman, Deputy City Secretary

City of Blanco 

 General Election Order 2026 



 
 

OLD BUSINESS 
ITEM #2 

 
  



 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #1 

  





1 | Page of 2

P.O. Box 750
Blanco, TX 78606

830-833-4525
Fax 830-833-4121

Application for Consideration of Appointment

The Public Information Act (PIA) may allow for public review of this application upon request.

 New application  Re-appointment application

Board Historic Preservation Commission Advisory Committee Other:

_____________________________

Personal Information

Last Name: __________________________ First name: _______________________________ Middle Initial_____

Street Address: ___________________________________& Mailing Address: _____________________________

City, State & Zip: _______________________________________________________________________________

Cell Phone Number: _____________________Home: ____________________ Business: _____________________

E-mail: __________________________________________ other: _______________________________________

Employer: ____________________________________________________________

Occupation: ____________________________________________________________

Business Address: ____________________________________________________________

To the best of your knowledge, are you employed by, or a member of, any identity (business or non-profit)
with proposals, programs, requests, business, applications, licenses, or any other matters which might
come before a board or commission for review, funding, support, or approval during the next two-to-four
years?

Yes  No  If yes, please list the name of the entity and interest:
________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________

How long have you been a resident of Blanco [UDC Section 4.11 (2)]? _____________________

Please give a brief information on your education, past, employment, and special background or qualifications you
have for serving on this board/commission. Use attachment, if necessary. Skills listed below should be used as
available when making these appointments. Please attach your resume.

______________________________________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________________________________

Please state why you wish to serve the City of Blanco as a member of a commission, committee or other. Use
attachment, if necessary.
_____________________________________________________________________________________________

July 26, 2020 7:05 pm Approved By: BHPC/By RN-HPO

Crisp Mike

Blanco, TX 78606

210-326-6221

onlybygrace02@yahoo.com

Pratt & Whitney
Engineer
East Hartford, CT

1 year, 8 months

Having recently established roots in Blanco, I have a strong desire to ensure our city maintains its cultural heritage.

Texas Master Naturalist, worked with TPW & Texas Forest Service on projects in and around San Antonio, 

and an M.S. in Civil and Environmental Engineering from Southern Methodist University which could benefit related projects.

619 Live Oak St.



2 | Page of 2

_____________________________________________________________________________________________

Do you currently serve on the City council, or commission [UDC Section 4.11 (5)]?

________Yes ______No If yes, which board or commission? ____________________How long?

_______________

Do you any have any relatives who work for the City of Blanco [UDC Section 4.11 (11)]? ______Yes _____No

If so, please list ___________________________

Are you able to meet from 75-100% of all meetings of the Commission within any twelve (12) months period (Ch 4
HPC [6])?    ______Yes _____No

Are you able to manage a committee? ______Yes _____No. How many hours can you devote per week?

______________or month? ______________

Certification

I am not employed by the city of Blanco or by city council member.

If appointed, I will notify the city of Blanco of any changes in my residence or business or have any other relevant
changes that would affect my appointment. I will also notify the city of any potential conflicts of interest does arise.

I recognized in my appointment that it requires my regular attendance and participation in all scheduled meetings.
Failure to do so I am resolving my removal. I am willing to make this commitment of time and effort.

I hereby certify could all information is application is complete truthful and accurate to the best of my knowledge.

________________________________________________________________               _____________________
Signature Date

Some boards/commissions/committees require members to reside within the city limits. Please return completed
form to the City Secretary’s office for processing. Your application will be kept on file.

Note: When filed at City Hall, this will become public record that may be disclosed for the Texas Public Information
Act. (Texas Government Code in Title 5, Subchapter A Subtitle 552.)

Texas Government Code
As a commissioner, you will be required to participate in education training and comply with the Open Meetings
Act (OMA) required training pursuant Texas Government Code Section 551.005). Training must be complete within
90 days assuming the responsibilities of office. After completing the training course, you may print your certificate.

https://www.texasattorneygeneral.gov/open-government/open-meetings-act-training

BLANCO HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION

- Meets Last Monday at 6:00 pm at the City Council Chambers-at times on the last Monday.
- Six members
- Primary purpose is to advise the Council on COA’s and all the subject matters of the historic square, landmarks,
and business per the UDC.

July 26, 2020 7:05 pm Approved By: BHPC/By RN-HPO

X

X

X

X

6 - 10

February 3, 2026



3 | Page of 2

ADVISORS/HISTORIANS

The commission may appoint two (2) to four (4) longtime residents of the area to serve as advisors/historians on
local historic matters. These advisors/historians shall serve in a non-voting capacity for a term of two (2) years.
These are preferred representatives. (UDC Ch 4)

July 26, 2020 7:05 pm Approved By: BHPC/By RN-HPO



 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #2 

 
  





 

1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 2026-O-004 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BLANCO, TEXAS, ORDERING A SPECIAL 
ELECTION ON MAY 2, 2026, TO SUBMIT TO THE QUALIFIED VOTERS OF 
THE CITY A COMBINED PROPOSITION TO (I) REDUCE THE LOCAL SALES 
AND USE TAX RATE FOR PROPERTY TAX RELIEF FROM ONE-HALF OF 
ONE PERCENT (0.50%) TO ONE-FOURTH OF ONE PERCENT (0.25%) AND (II) 
ADOPT A LOCAL SALES AND USE TAX FOR THE MAINTENANCE AND 
REPAIR OF MUNICIPAL STREETS AND ROADS AT THE RATE OF ONE-
FOURTH OF ONE PERCENT (0.25%), WHICH STREET MAINTENANCE TAX 
SHALL EXPIRE FOUR (4) YEARS AFTER THE DATE OF THE ELECTION 
UNLESS REAUTHORIZED; MAKING PROVISION FOR CONDUCT OF THE 
ELECTION; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Blanco, Texas (the “City Council”) finds and 
determines that a Special Election should be held to submit to the qualified voters of the 
City of Blanco, Texas (the “City”) a combined proposition to reduce the local sales and use 
tax rate for property tax relief from one-half of one percent (0.50%) to one-fourth of one 
percent (0.25%) and to adopt a local sales and use tax for the maintenance and repair of 
municipal streets and roads at the rate of one-fourth of one percent (0.25%), which street 
maintenance tax shall expire four (4) years after the date of the election unless reauthorized; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BLANCO, TEXAS: 

SECTION 1. ORDER AND DATE OF ELECTION; PROPOSITION 
A Special Election is hereby ordered to be held on Saturday, May 2, 2026, the first Saturday 
in May and a uniform election date, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified voters of 
the City the following measure: 

• “Should the City of Blanco be authorized to maintain the same overall level of sales 
tax within the City limits by reducing the local sales and use tax rate for property tax 
relief from one-half of one percent (0.50%) to one-fourth of one percent (0.25%) while 
adopting a local sales and use tax for the maintenance and repair of municipal streets 
and roads existing at the time of this election at the rate of one-fourth of one percent 
(0.25%), which street maintenance tax shall expire four (4) years after the date of this 
election unless reauthorized as permitted by law?”    
 
___ FOR ___ AGAINST” 



 

2 
 

SECTION 2. ELECTION SERVICES 
The City has entered into a Contract for Election Services (the “Contract”) with Blanco 
County whereby the Blanco County Elections Administrator will provide services for the 
election, which may include procuring and distributing election supplies, securing and 
staffing polling places for early voting and election day, providing voting equipment, 
supervising election operations, conducting early voting (including establishing dates, 
times, and places for early voting), and other related services. 

SECTION 3. ELECTION DAY POLLING PLACE; OFFICERS; CONDUCT OF 
ELECTION 
To the extent not otherwise provided for in the Contract with Blanco County, the following 
shall apply; provided that any conflict shall be resolved in favor of the County’s contract 
and applicable law: 

• The entire City shall have one or more election day polling locations as designated by 
the Blanco County Elections Administrator pursuant to the Contract.  

• The City Council shall appoint the Presiding Judge and the Alternate Presiding Judge 
in accordance with the Texas Election Code. The Presiding Judge shall appoint not 
fewer than two (2) nor more than four (4) resident qualified electors of the City to serve 
as clerks. If the Presiding Judge serves, the Alternate Presiding Judge shall serve as one 
of the clerks. In the absence of the Presiding Judge, the Alternate Presiding Judge shall 
perform the duties of the Presiding Judge. 

• Bilingual (English–Spanish) oral assistance shall be made available to voters who 
require such assistance. Voters needing assistance should contact the Presiding Judge 
or the Early Voting Clerk. 

• On election day, the polls shall be open from 7:00 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., or as otherwise 
required by the Texas Election Code. 

SECTION 4. EARLY VOTING; EARLY VOTING CLERK; BALLOT BOARD 
• Early voting by personal appearance shall be conducted at the dates, times, and 

locations designated by the Blanco County Elections Administrator in accordance with 
the Texas Election Code. 

• [INSERT NAME], whose mailing address is [INSERT ADDRESS] and email address 
is [INSERT EMAIL], shall serve as the Early Voting Clerk. The permanent employees 
of the Blanco County Elections Administrator are appointed as Deputy Early Voting 
Clerks. 

• The Early Voting Ballot Board is hereby created and shall process early voting ballots 
in accordance with the Texas Election Code. The Presiding Judge of the Early Voting 
Ballot Board and its members shall be appointed in accordance with law. 



 

3 
 

SECTION 5. FORM OF BALLOT; VOTING SYSTEM 
• The election shall be conducted with an electronic voting system and paper ballots as 

required or permitted by the Texas Election Code, and all election materials and 
proceedings shall be provided in both English and Spanish as required by law. 

• The ballot shall permit electors to vote “FOR” or “AGAINST” the following 
proposition, which shall appear substantially as follows:  
 
__ FOR__ AGAINST 
 

CITY OF BLANCO PROPOSITION A: THIS IS A TAX INCREASE 
 
The reduction of the local sales and use tax rate for property tax relief in the City of 
Blanco from one-half of one percent (0.50%) to one-fourth of one percent (0.25%) and 
the adoption of a local sales and use tax for the maintenance and repair of municipal 
streets and roads at the rate of one-fourth of one percent (0.25%),  (meaning the overall 
sales tax rate in the City will not change despite the ballot language required by the 
Election Code at the top of this proposition). 

SECTION 6. ELIGIBILITY; CONDUCT OF ELECTION; BILINGUAL 
MATERIALS 
All qualified electors of the City shall be permitted to vote in the election at the designated 
polling place(s). The election shall be held and conducted in accordance with the Texas 
Election Code, the Texas Local Government Code, and other applicable law. All notices, 
instructions, and ballots shall be printed in English and Spanish as required by law. 

SECTION 7. NOTICE OF ELECTION 
Notice of the election shall be given in the manner provided by the Texas Election Code, 
including posting on the bulletin board used for notices of City Council meetings not later 
than the 21st day before election day and publishing in the City’s official newspaper at 
least once, not earlier than the 30th day or later than the 10th day before election day. The 
notice shall be in English and Spanish and include the location of each polling place. 

SECTION 8. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS 
The recitals set forth above are found to be true and correct and are hereby incorporated as 
findings of the City Council. 

SECTION 9. CONFLICTS 
All ordinances or resolutions, or parts thereof, in conflict with this Ordinance are repealed 
to the extent of such conflict only, and this Ordinance shall control as to the matters 
provided herein. 



 

4 
 

SECTION 10. GOVERNING LAW 
This Ordinance shall be construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Texas and the United States of America, including the Texas Election Code. 

SECTION 11. SEVERABILITY 
If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance is held 
invalid, the remainder of the Ordinance and the application of such provision to other 
persons or circumstances shall not be affected, and to this end the provisions of this 
Ordinance are declared to be severable. 

SECTION 12. OPEN MEETINGS 
It is officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance is adopted 
was open to the public and that public notice of the time, place, and subject matter of the 
meeting was given, as required by the Texas Government Code, Chapter 551. 

SECTION 13. MODIFICATIONS.  
The Council acknowledges that information required to complete the Exhibit to this Order 
may not be available when the Election is ordered, and the Council therefore authorizes the 
Mayor, the City Secretary, or their designees, to correct, modify, or change the Exhibit to 
the extent permitted by applicable law. Additionally, the Council authorizes these 
individuals to make technical modifications to this Order that are necessary for compliance 
with applicable law or to carry out the intent of the Board as evidenced in this Order. 

SECTION 14. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval. 

PASSED AND APPROVED this ___ day of __________, 2026. 

CITY OF BLANCO, TEXAS 

 

______________________________ 
Candy Cargill, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
______________________________ 
Callie Ann Alex, City Secretary 



Glenn Hegar

Texas Comptroller of 
Public Accounts

J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 0

This publication is intended as a general guide and not as a comprehensive resource on the subjects covered. 
It is not a substitute for legal advice.

1 

FOR MORE INFORMATION,   
VISIT OUR WEBSITE 

Comptroller.Texas.Gov 

RECEIVE ECONOMIC   
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP   

BY EMAIL AT 

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
  

MUNICIPAL SALES AND USE TAX 
FOR STREET MAINTENANCE 
Many Texas cities do not have the funds necessary to repair existing streets and sidewalks.  
The  Tax Code  authorizes cities to impose a special sales tax to fund maintenance of this  
important mobility infrastructure. 

WHO IS ELIGIBLE? 
Cities may impose the tax if the new
combined local sales tax rate will not 
exceed 2 percent. 

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.003(b).] 

ELECTION IS REQUIRED 

A city’s voters must approve the additional
sales tax. The city’s governing body must 
adopt an ordinance calling for an election 
to be held on one of the two uniform 
election dates: 
• the first Saturday in May; or

• the first Tuesday after the first Monday in
November.
For guidance on the timing of elections, 

please contact the Secretary of State at  
512-463-5650 or toll free at 800-252-8683. 
Additional information is available on the 
Secretary of State’s website.

BALLOT LANGUAGE 

At the election to adopt the additional tax, a 
ballot must allow voters the choice of voting  
for or against the proposition. Following is the  
required ballot language: 

“The adoption of a local sales and use  
tax in (name of municipality) at the  
rate of (insert appropriate rate) to  
provide revenue for maintenance and  
repair of municipal streets.” 

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.006(b).] 

For sales tax elections called by the  
governing body, a municipality may combine  
measures to lower or repeal any dedicated  
or special purpose municipal sales tax into  
a single ballot proposition, and at the same  
time raise or adopt any other dedicated  
special purpose municipal sales tax. A  
combined sales tax proposition would have to  
contain substantially the same language as  
that required for lowering, repealing, raising  
or adopting each tax as appropriate. If a  
combined sales tax proposition were defeated,  
there would be no effect on existing   
sales taxes. 

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.109.] 

The tax may be used  

to  repair existing  

streets, but  

not build new  

streets. 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.003
http://www.sos.state.tx.us/elections/index.shtml
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.006
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.409
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm


22 

FOR MORE INFORMATION, 
VISIT OUR WEBSITE 

Comptroller.Texas.Gov 

RECEIVE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP 

BY EMAIL AT 

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov 

Municipal Sales and Use Tax for Street Maintenance

  

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
  

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Street  

maintenance tax  

funds may be spent 

on municipal streets  

including sidewalks. 

ELECTION RESULTS 

If the election is successful, within 10 days of
the election the city must declare the results 
of the election by resolution or an ordinance 
entered in its minutes of proceedings. 
The resolution or ordinance must include 
statements showing: 
• the date the election was held;

• the wording of the proposition;

• the total number of votes cast for and
against the proposition; and

• the number of votes by which the 
proposition passed.

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.405.] 

If the voters of a municipality adopt the 
street maintenance sales tax at an election 
held on the same date that another political 
subdivision adopts a sales and use tax or 
approves the increase in the rate of its sales 
and use tax, the combined rate of all sales 
and use taxes must not exceed 2 percent 
at any location in the municipality. If the 
combined rate exceeds 2 percent at any 
location in the municipality, the election to 
adopt a street maintenance sales tax will have 
no effect. 

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.003(c).] 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

The tax will become effective on the
first day of the first calendar quarter 
after one complete calendar quarter 
passes from the date the Comptroller 
receives the city’s notice that voters 
have approved the tax. 

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.005.] 

For example, if voters approve the 
tax in an election held in May and the 
city sends the election results to the 
Revenue Accounting, Tax Allocation 
Section of the Comptroller’s office by 
the end of June, the tax would take 

effect on Oct. 1. The city would begin receiving 
revenue from the Comptroller beginning with 
the December sales tax allocation. 

ADMINISTRATION OF THE TAX  
The city should account for street
maintenance sales tax funds separately from 
other revenues. 

USE OF THE STREET MAINTENANCE SALES TAX 

Funds may be used only to maintain and
repair municipal streets and sidewalks that 
existed on the date of the election to adopt 
the tax. It may not be used to build new 
streets. 

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.008.] 

WHAT ARE “MUNICIPAL” STREETS? 

A “municipal street” includes the entire
width of a way (including sidewalks) held 
by a municipality in fee or by easement or 
dedication that has a part open for public use 
for vehicular travel. The term does not include 
a designated state or federal highway or road 
or a designated county road. 

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.001.] 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.008
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.001
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.405
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.003
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.005


3 

FOR MORE INFORMATION, 
VISIT OUR WEBSITE 

Comptroller.Texas.Gov 

RECEIVE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP 

BY EMAIL AT 

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov 

Municipal Sales and Use Tax for Street Maintenance

  

  
  

  

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

  

EXPIRATION AND REAUTHORIZATION 
OF THE TAX 
For most cities, the street maintenance sales
tax expires four years after it takes effect unless 
the city’s voters authorize it to continue in an 
election held for that purpose. The election to 
reauthorize the tax must be held on one of the 
two uniform election dates noted previously. The 
ballot proposition language should permit voting 
for or against the following proposition: 

“The reauthorization of the local sales 
and use tax in (name of municipality) 
at the rate of (insert appropriate rate) 
to continue providing revenue for 
maintenance and repair of municipal 
streets.” 

The municipality must notify the Comptroller 
of the scheduled expiration not later than the 
10th day after the municipality determines that 
the tax will expire. 
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.007.] 

If an election to reauthorize the tax is not 
held before the tax expires or if votes cast in 
an election to reauthorize the tax do not favor 
reauthorization, the municipality may not call 
an election to authorize a new tax under this 
chapter before the first anniversary of the date 
on which the tax expired. 
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 327.007.] 

NEED MORE INFORMATION? 
For more information about the street
maintenance sales tax, call the Comptroller’s 
Data Analysis and Transparency Division at 
844-519-5672.

The tax expires  

four years after  

it takes effect  

unless voters authorize  

its extension. 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.007
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.327.htm#327.007


WE’RE HERE TO HELP!
If you have questions or need information, contact us:

This publication is intended as a general guide and not as a comprehensive resource on the subjects covered. It is not a substitute for legal advice.

Glenn Hegar  
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

Publication 96-940 • Revised January 2020

 
 

  
 

 

 
  

  

 
 
 

 

 

  

  

 

For more information, visit our website 
Comptroller.Texas.Gov 

Receive economic development 
tax help by email at 

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov 

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
111 East 17th Street 

Austin, Texas 78711-1440 

Sign up to receive email updates on 
the Comptroller topics of your choice at 
comptroller.texas.gov/subscribe. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, this document may be requested in alternative 
formats by calling the appropriate toll-free number 
listed or by sending a fax to 512-475-0900. 

800-252-5555 
911 Emergency Service/ 

Equalization Surcharge 
Automotive Oil Fee 
Battery Fee 
Boat and Boat Motor Sales Tax 
Customs Broker 
Mixed Beverage Taxes 
Of-Road, Heavy-Duty Diesel 

Equipment Surcharge 
Oyster Fee 
Sales and Use Taxes 

800-531-5441 
Cement Tax 
Inheritance Tax 
Local Revenue 
Miscellaneous Gross 

Receipts Taxes 
Oil Well Servicing Tax 
Sulphur Tax 

800-442-4353 
WebFile Help 

800-252-1381 
Bank Franchise 
Franchise Tax 

800-252-7875 
Spanish 

800-531-1441 
Fax on Demand (Most frequently request-

ed Sales and Franchise tax forms) 

800-252-1382 
Clean Vehicle Incentive Program 
Manufactured Housing Tax 
Motor Vehicle Sales Surcharge, 

Rental and Seller Financed Sales Tax 
Motor Vehicle Registration Surcharge 

800-252-1383 
Fuels Tax 
IFTA 
LG Decals 
Petroleum Products Delivery Fee 
School Fund Beneft Fee 

800-252-1384 
Coastal Protection 
Crude Oil Production Tax 
Natural Gas Production Tax 

800-252-1387 
Insurance Tax 

800-252-1385 
Coin-Operated Machines Tax 
Hotel Occupancy Tax 

800-252-1386 
Account Status 
Ofcer and Director Information 

800-862-2260 
Cigarette and Tobacco 

888-4-FILING (888-434-5464) 
TELEFILE: To File by Phone 

800-252-1389 
GETPUB: To Order Forms and Publica-

tions 

800-654-FIND (800-654-3463) 
Treasury Find 

800-321-2274 
Unclaimed Property Claimants 
Unclaimed Property Holders 
Unclaimed Property Name Searches 

512-463-3120 in Austin 

877-44RATE4 (877-447-2834) 
Interest Rate 

https://comptroller.texas.gov/
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=
http://comptroller.texas.gov/subscribe


J A N U A R Y  2 0 2 0

1

 

USING SALES TAX TO REDUCE 
THE PROPERTY TAX RATE

Glenn Hegar

Texas Comptroller of 
Public Accounts

Additional sales and 

use tax can be enacted 

if a community’s total 

local sales tax rate will 

not exceed 2 percent.

FOR MORE INFORMATION, 
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov
This publication is intended as a general guide and not as a comprehensive resource on the subjects covered.  

It is not a substitute for legal advice.

Texas cities, counties and hospital districts have the option to reduce property taxes by 
imposing a sales and use tax. 

Although this tax is sometimes called “the sales
tax to reduce the property tax rate,” state statutes 
refer to it as “the additional municipal sales and 
use tax” for cities, the “county sales and use tax” 
for counties and the “hospital district sales and 
use tax” for hospital districts.
[Refer to Health and Safety Code, Sect. 285.061,

and Tax Code, Sect. 321.101, 323.101.] 

ELIGIBILITY

CITIES

 A city is eligible to adopt the tax if it is not with-
in the boundaries of a regional transportation or 
rapid transit authority, does not impose a sales tax to fund 
a municipal transit department, and the new combined 
local sales tax rate would not exceed two percent at any 
location within the city. 

Cities within the boundaries of the following metropolitan 
transit authorities (MTAs), regional transit authority (RTAs), 
and city transit departments (CTDs) are generally excluded 
from enacting the tax: 

• Austin MTA, Corpus Christi MTA, Houston MTA and San
Antonio MTA;

• Dallas RTA and Fort Worth MTA; and

• El Paso CTD and Laredo CTD.

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.101, and Transportation Code, 

Chapters 451-453.] 

COUNTIES

A county is eligible to adopt the tax if the new combined
local sales tax rate would not exceed 2 percent at any 
location within the county, and no part of the county is 
located within the boundaries of a rapid transit or regional 
transportation authority. An authority is not considered part 
of a county if fewer than 250 people are residents of both 
the county and the authority.
[Refer to Tax Code, 323.101, and Transportation Code, 

Chapters 451-452.]

HOSPITAL DISTRICTS

A hospital district authorized to impose a property tax is
eligible to adopt the sales and use tax to lower the district’s 
property taxes if the new combined rate of all local sales taxes 
would not exceed 2 percent at any location within the district.
[Refer to Health and Safety Code, Sect. 285.061(a).]

http://Comptroller.Texas.Gov
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.285.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.101
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.323.htm#323.101
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.101
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TN/htm/TN.451.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TN/htm/TN.451.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.323.htm#323.101
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TN/htm/TN.451.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TN/htm/TN.451.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.285.htm


22

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Using Sales Tax to Reduce the Property Tax Rate

TAX RATE

CITIES

Voters may adopt a tax rate of up to 2 percent in incre-
ments of 0.125 percent. Increases or reductions in the tax 
rate also must be in increments of 0.125 percent.
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.103.]

COUNTIES

Voters may adopt the sales and use tax at a rate of 0.5 
percent. If a county has no incorporated cities, the county 
tax rate must be 1 percent.
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 323.103.] 

HOSPITAL DISTRICTS

Voters may adopt or change the tax in increments of 0.125 
percent to a maximum of 2 percent, as long as the combined 
local sales tax rate would not exceed 2 percent at any loca-
tion within the district.
[Refer to Health and Safety Code, Sect. 285.061(a), (c).]

CALLING ELECTIONS
The governing body of an eligible city, county or hospital 
district may call for an election in two ways:

• by majority vote of the governing body; or 

• by petition of qualified voters equal to at least five per-
cent of the number of registered voters.

COMBINED BALLOT PROPOSITION

A city may use a combined ballot proposition to lower or to 
repeal any municipal sales tax, including the additional sales 
tax for property tax relief; and by the same proposition raise or 
adopt any other municipal sales tax.

A combined sales tax proposition under this section shall 
contain substantially the same language, if any, required by 
law for the lowering, repealing, raising, or adopting each tax 
as appropriate.

A negative vote on a combined sales tax proposition 
under this section shall have no effect on either the sales 
tax to be lowered or repealed by the proposition or the 
sales tax to be raised or adopted by the proposition.  
This provision only applies to elections called by the  
city council.
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.409.]

DEADLINE AFTER PETITION

If responding to a petition, the governing body must deter-
mine if it is sufficient within 30 days of receiving it. 

If deemed sufficient, the governing body must then 
adopt an ordinance or order calling for the election within 
60 days after receiving the petition. 

TIME OF ELECTION

The Tax Code specifies that the election must be held on 
the next uniform election date not less than 30 days after 
the ordinance or order is passed.

The uniform election dates are:

• the first Saturday in May; and

• the first Tuesday after the first Monday in November. 

For guidance on the timing of elections, please contact 
the Secretary of State (SOS) at 512-463-5650 or toll free 
at 800-252-8683. Additional information is available on the 
Secretary of State’s website. 

WITHDRAWAL FROM A TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

A municipality may withdraw from a Transportation Authority 
after holding an election for that purpose. However, a munici-
pality may not use a combined ballot proposition to withdraw 
from a Transportation Authority and impose a sales tax to 
reduce the property tax rate or any other special purpose 
sales tax.

Within 10 days after an 

election, the governing 

body must enter the 

resolution or the 

ordinance declaring the 

results into the minutes 

of a meeting held for 

that purpose.

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.409
http://www.sos.state.tx.us/elections/index.shtml
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.103
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.323.htm#323.103
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.285.htm


3

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Using Sales Tax to Reduce the Property Tax Rate

BALLOT WORDING 

CITIES

When holding an election to adopt, increase, reduce or 
repeal the additional sales tax, a city must print the ballot 
to permit voting for or against one of the following proposi-
tions, as appropriate:

If a city has a property tax and proposes to adopt or 
increase the additional sales tax, the ballot proposition 
must state:

“The adoption of an additional sales and use tax 
within the city at the rate of _____ to be used 
to reduce the property tax rate.” (Insert rate in 
increments of 0.125 percent as appropriate).
If a city does not have a property tax and proposes 
to adopt or increase the additional sales tax, the 
ballot proposition must state:
“The adoption of an additional sales and use 
tax within the city at the rate of _____.” 
(Insert rate in increments of 0.125 percent, as 
appropriate).
For a city to repeal the tax, the ballot proposi-
tion must state:
“The abolition of the additional sales and use 
tax within the city.”

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.404.]

COUNTIES

When holding an election to adopt or repeal the sales and 
use tax, a county must print the ballot to permit voting for 
or against one of the following propositions, as appropriate:

In a county with territory within the limits of a city, the 
ballot proposition to adopt the tax must state:

“Adoption of a one-half percent county sales and use 
tax within the county to be used to reduce the county 
property tax rate.”

In a county that does not have territory within the limits 
of a city, the ballot proposition to adopt the tax must state:

“Adoption of a one percent county sales and use 
tax within the county to be used to reduce the 
county property tax rate.”

In an election to repeal the tax, the ballot proposition 
must state:

“Abolition of the county sales and use tax within 
the county.”

[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 323.404.]

HOSPITAL DISTRICTS

When holding an election to adopt, increase, reduce or repeal 
the sales and use tax, a hospital district must print the ballot 
to permit voting for or against one of the following propositions, 
as appropriate:

For a hospital district to adopt the tax, the ballot propo-
sition must state:

“The adoption of a local sales and use tax in 
(name of district) at the rate of (proposed tax 
rate) percent to be used to reduce the district 
property taxes.”

To change the tax rate, the ballot proposition must state:
“The (increase or decrease, as applicable) in 
the rate of the local sales and use tax imposed 
by (name of district) from (tax rate on election 
date) percent to (proposed tax rate) percent.”

To abolish the tax, the ballot proposition must state:
“The abolition of the local sales and use tax in 
(name of district).”

[Refer to Health and Safety Code, Sect. 285.062(c)-(e).]

Cities, counties and 

hospital districts may 

use revenues from this 

tax as they would use 

property tax revenues.

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.404
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.323.htm#323.404
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.285.htm


44

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Using Sales Tax to Reduce the Property Tax Rate

 

NOTIFICATION TO THE COMPTROLLER
Within 10 days after an election, the governing body must 
enter the resolution or the ordinance declaring the results 
into its meeting minutes. The resolution or ordinance must 
include:

• the date of the election;

• the proposition on which the vote was held;

• the total number of votes cast for and against the  
proposition; and

• the number of votes by which the proposition was 
approved.

Before the end of the current calendar quarter, the city, 
county or hospital district must send copies of the reso-
lution or ordinance along with a map of the municipality 
clearly showing its boundaries to the Comptroller’s office, 
through U.S. certified or registered mail. After receiving 
the resolution or ordinance, the Comptroller has 30 days 
to notify the entity that the Comptroller’s office is ready to 
manage the administration of the tax. 
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.405.]

COMPTROLLER’S ADDRESS

Comptroller of Public Accounts
Revenue Accounting Division, Tax Allocation Section
P.O. Box 13528
Austin, Texas 78711-3528.

EFFECTIVE DATE OF TAX OR TAX CHANGE

After voter approval, the tax change becomes effective on 
Oct. 1 after the expiration of the first complete calendar 
quarter after the Comptroller receives official notice from the 
entity of the tax rate change.

May Election: Send notice to the Comptroller no later 
than the last week in June. The new tax rate will take effect 
on Oct. 1 of the same year. The entity will receive its first 
payment from the Comptroller in December.

November Election: Send notice to the Comptroller no 
later than the last week in December. The new tax rate will 
take effect on Oct. 1 of the following year. The entity will 
receive its first payment from the Comptroller during the 
subsequent December.
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.102(a-b), 321.409, 

323.102(a-b), and Health and Safety Code, Sect. 285.063.] 

USE OF REVENUE AND EXCESS REVENUE

Cities, counties and hospital districts may use revenues 
from this tax as they would use property tax revenues. 
There are, however, some restrictions placed on cities and 
counties in the use of “excess” revenues—the additional 
sales and use tax that exceeds the projected amount of 
property tax to be reduced for a given year. For cities and 
counties that impose a property tax, the revenues collected 
from the additional sales and use tax up to the projected 
amount may be used for any legal budgeted purpose. The 
projected amount is the estimate of sales tax revenue cal-
culated under Tax Code, Sect. 26.041(d).

During the first three years of imposing the tax, 
a city or a county must deposit any amounts that 
exceed the projected amount into an “excess sales 
tax revenue fund.” During these first three years, the 
city or the county may use the excess revenues only 
if, and to the extent that, other revenues fall short 
of budgeted amounts. After the third year, the city or 
the county may use the revenue in the fund for any 
legal purpose listed in its budget. When all revenue 
in the fund has been spent, the fund ceases to exist. 

Cities and counties 

must use excess funds 

to pay current debt 

obligations.

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.323.htm#323.102
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.285.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.26.htm#26.041
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.405


5

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Using Sales Tax to Reduce the Property Tax Rate

Similarities in depositing and using funds end with the 
beginning of the fourth year. In the fourth year, a city must 
deposit excess funds into a “municipal sales tax debt service 
fund,” which may be used only to pay city debts. After current 
debt obligations have been paid, excess funds may be used 
for any legal budgeted purpose. A city cannot pledge the 
anticipated sales tax revenue to pay bonds or other debts. 

Counties also must use excess funds to reduce county 
debts. After all debt is paid, a county may use the excess 
funds for any legal budgeted purpose. Similarly, a county 
cannot pledge anticipated sales tax revenue to secure the 
payment of bonds or other debts for a period longer than 
one year.
[Refer to Tax Code, Sect. 321.506-7, 323.505, and Health and 

Safety Code, Sect. 285.064.] 

FOR MORE INFORMATION 
For more information about the sales tax to reduce the 
property tax rate, contact the Comptroller’s Data Analysis 
and Transparency Division at 844-519-5672,  
or econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov.

For more information about property taxes or about 
calculating no-new-revenue tax rates and voter-approval 
tax rates, contact the Comptroller’s Property Tax Division at 
800-252-9121.

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm#321.506
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/TX/htm/TX.323.htm#323.505
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.285.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/HS/htm/HS.285.htm
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov?subject=


WE’RE HERE TO HELP!
If you have questions or need information, contact us:

This publication is intended as a general guide and not as a comprehensive resource on the subjects covered. It is not a substitute for legal advice.

Glenn Hegar 
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

For more information, visit our website 
Comptroller.Texas.Gov 

Receive economic development  
tax help by email at 

econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
111 East 17th Street

Austin, Texas 78711-1440

Sign up to receive email updates on  
the Comptroller topics of your choice at  
comptroller.texas.gov/subscribe.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, this document may be requested in alternative 
formats by calling the appropriate toll-free number 
listed or by sending a fax to 512-475-0900.

800-252-5555
911 Emergency Service/ 

Equalization Surcharge
Automotive Oil Fee
Battery Fee 
Boat and Boat Motor Sales Ta
Customs Broker
Mixed Beverage Taxes
Off-Road, Heavy-Duty Diesel  

Equipment Surcharge
Oyster Fee
Sales and Use Taxes

x

800-531-5441
Cement Tax
Inheritance Tax
Local Revenue
Miscellaneous Gross 

Receipts Taxes
Oil Well Servicing Tax
Sulphur Tax

800-531-5441, ext. 3-3630
WebFile Help

800-252-1381
Bank Franchise
Franchise Tax

800-252-7875
Spanish

800-531-1441
Fax on Demand (Most frequently 
requested Sales and Franchise tax forms)

800-252-1382
Clean Vehicle Incentive Program
Manufactured Housing Tax
Motor Vehicle Sales Surcharge, 

Rental and Seller Financed Sales Tax
Motor Vehicle Registration Surcharge

800-252-1383
Fuels Tax
IFTA
LG Decals 
Petroleum Products Delivery Fee
School Fund Benefit Fee

800-252-1384
Coastal Protection
Crude Oil Production Tax
Natural Gas Production Tax

800-252-1387
Insurance Tax

800-252-1385
Coin-Operated Machines Tax
Hotel Occupancy Tax

800-252-1386
Account Status
Officer and Director Information

800-862-2260
Cigarette and Tobacco

888-4-FILING (888-434-5464)
TELEFILE: To File by Phone

800-252-1389
GETPUB: To Order Forms and 
Publications

800-654-FIND (800-654-3463)
Treasury Find

800-321-2274
Unclaimed Property Claimants
Unclaimed Property Holders
Unclaimed Property Name Searches

512-463-3120 in Austin

877-44RATE4 (877-447-2834)
Interest Rate

Publication 96-466 • Revised January 2020

http://Comptroller.Texas.Gov
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=
http://comptroller.texas.gov/subscribe


M A R C H  2 0 2 0

1

Glenn Hegar

Texas Comptroller of  
Public Accounts

This publication is intended as a general guide and not as a comprehensive resource on the subjects covered. 
It is not a substitute for legal advice.

FOR MORE INFORMATION, 
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP 

BY EMAIL AT
econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

 

•	

A Type A or B sales 

tax can be levied in 

increments of 0.125%  

if the total rate does not 

exceed the 2% cap for 

all local sales tax rates 

combined.

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
SALES TAX
WHY LEVY A TYPE A OR B ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX?
Voters in most Texas cities have the option of imposing a local sales and use tax to help 
finance their community’s economic development efforts.

WHO IS ELIGIBLE? 

TYPE A SALES TAX 

Any city located in a county with a population
of less than 500,000 may impose the tax under 
Type A if the new combined local sales tax rate 
would not exceed 2 percent. 

Some cities located in counties with a 
population of 500,000 or more also may use 
Type A for economic development efforts but 
a city’s eligibility varies from county to county. 
For information on which cities are eligible to 
impose the Type A tax in these counties, call the 
Comptroller’s Data Analysis and Transparency 
Division at 844-519-5672. 

TYPE B SALES TAX 

All cities are eligible to adopt the Type B
sales tax in increments of 0.125 percent if the 
combined local sales tax rate would not exceed 
2 percent. 

HOW IS THE TAX ADMINISTERED? 

DEVELOPMENT CORPORATIONS 

For both Type A and Type B, the Development
Corporation Act requires cities to establish a 
corporation to administer the sales and use tax 
funds. 

The corporation must file articles of 
incorporation with the Secretary of State. The 
articles of incorporation must state that the 

corporation is governed by the Development 
Corporation Act of 1979 found in Chapters 501-
505 of the Local Government Code. 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

A T ype A or Type B corporation’s board of directors
serves at the pleasure of the city council and may 
be removed and replaced at any time and without 
cause. All expenditures authorized by a Type A or 
a Type B corporation also require approval by the 
city council. 

Board meetings of Type A and Type B 
corporations must be held within the corporate 
limits of the authorizing municipality; unless 
the authorizing city is located in a county with a 
population of 30,000 or fewer where meetings 
may be held at any location within the county. 

The following rules apply to terms and number 
of directors for each type of corporation:

Type A: The city council must appoint a board 
of directors with at least five members to serve 

https://comptroller.texas.gov
mailto:econ.dev%40cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.504.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/LG/htm/LG.505.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/LG/htm/LG.501.htm


	 2

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT
econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Economic Development Sales Tax

•	

•	

terms not to exceed six years. The statute does 
not specify qualifications for board members. 

•	 Type B: The city council must appoint a board 
of seven directors. Three of the seven directors 
must not be employees or officers of the city 
or members of the city council. All directors 
are appointed to two-year terms. The directors 
must be residents of the city authorizing the 
sales tax if the city’s population is 20,000 
or more. For cities with fewer than 20,000 
residents, directors must be residents of the 
county in which the majority of the city is 
located, or reside within 10 miles of the city 
and in a county that borders the county in 
which a majority of the city is located. 

ADMINISTRATION EXPENSES 

Type A and Type B corporations are authorized to 
pay administrative expenses (including staff) to 
implement the corporation’s projects. These may 
include administrative expenses for acquisition, 
construction, improvement, expansion and 
financing of projects. Cities that perform some of 
the administrative functions for the corporations 
may seek reimbursement for administrative 
expenses related to projects overseen by city 
staff. Additionally, corporations may contract with 
private corporations or other entities to carry out 
industrial development programs or objectives.

TRAINING 

Certain officials of cities that create a 
corporation and administrators of the corporation 
are required to attend an economic development 
training seminar within 90 days of taking office. 
Attendance is mandatory (at least once in a 
24-month period) for the city attorney, the city 
administrator or the city clerk; and the executive 
director or other person who is responsible for 
the day-to-day administration of the corporation. 
Corporation funds may be used to pay the costs 
of attending the seminar.

The Comptroller’s office may impose a penalty 
not to exceed $1,000 for failure to attend the 
required training seminar. 

The Type A sales tax 

is primarily intended 

for manufacturing and 

industrial development.

OPEN MEETINGS AND PUBLIC HEARINGS 

A development corporation’s board of 
directors is subject to the Open Meetings Act 
(Government Code, Chapter 551) and the 
Texas Public Information Act (Government Code, 
Chap. 552.) 

Type A corporations are required to hold public 
hearings only when considering an election 
asking the municipality’s voters to authorize a 
Type B project. 
Type B corporations located in cities with 
populations not exceeding 20,000 residents 
are exempt from holding public hearings 
when implementing Type A projects such as 
those that fund infrastructure or primary jobs 
activities. All Type B corporations, regardless 
of city population, must hold public hearings 
on all other types of projects. In addition, 
all Type B corporations must wait 60 days 
from the first public notice of the nature of a 
project before providing funds. This interval 
allows voters time to consider a petition for an 
election to be called on whether to pursue the 
project.

HOW CAN TAX REVENUE BE USED? 
Sales tax generated by both Type A and Type B 
is primarily intended to promote manufacturing 
and industrial development; Type B corporations 

http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.551.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.552.htm
http://www.statutes.legis.state.tx.us/Docs/GV/htm/GV.552.htm


3

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT
econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Economic Development Sales Tax

may fund some quality of life projects, and 
efforts to retain primary jobs. 

BOTH TYPE A AND TYPE B

Funds may be used to pay for land, buildings, 
equipment, facilities’ expenditures, targeted 
infrastructure and improvements for purposes 
related to:
•	 manufacturing and industrial facilities, 

recycling facilities, distribution centers, and 
small warehouse facilities; 

•	 research and development facilities, regional 
or national corporate headquarters facilities, 
primary job training facilities for use by 
institutions of higher education, job training 
classes, telephone call centers, and career 
centers that are not located within a junior 
college taxing district; 

•	a general aviation business service airport that 
is an integral part of an industrial park; 

•	certain infrastructure improvements that 
promote or develop new or expanded business 
enterprises; 

•	
•	

•	

•	

airport facilities;
the operation of commuter rail, light rail or 
commuter buses;
port-related facilities, rail-ports, rail switching 
facilities, marine ports, inland ports; and
maintenance and operating costs associated 
with projects. 

TYPE A SPECIAL CONDITIONS

Under special conditions, a Type A Corporation’s 
revenue can be used for projects normally eligible 
only under Type B without voting to abolish the 
Type A tax and impose the Type B tax. 

•	

•	

•	

In cities with 7,500 or fewer residents that 
have created both types of corporation, 
the city council may authorize the Type A 
corporation to fund Type B projects by simple 
majority vote. 
In larger communities or those with only Type 
A corporations, the board of directors must 
publish notice of a proposed Type B project, 
hold at least one public hearing and conduct 
a special election to seek voter approval. The 
ballot must clearly describe the project under 
consideration. 
Type A corporations also may spend sales tax 
funds to clean up contaminated property if 
the city holds a separate election to gain voter 
approval. A corporation created under Type A 
cannot assume debts, or pay principal or interest 
on debts that existed before the city created the 
corporation. 

TYPE B ELIGIBLE PROJECTS

Quality of Life: In addition to the projects listed 
above, Type B corporations may fund quality of 
life improvements, and acquire or pay for land, 
buildings, equipment, facilities expenditures, 
targeted infrastructure and improvements 
required or suitable for use for: 
•	 professional and amateur sports (including 

children’s sports) and athletic facilities, tourism 
and entertainment facilities, convention 
facilities, public parks and event facilities 
(including stadiums, ballparks, auditoriums, 
amphitheaters, concert halls, parks and open 
space improvements, museums and exhibition 
halls); related store, restaurant, concession, 
parking and transportation facilities; related 
street, water and sewer facilities; 

•	

•	

water supply facilities and water conservation 
programs, and
affordable housing. 
Primary Job Retention: To promote and 

develop new and expanded business enterprises 
that create or retain primary jobs, a Type B 
corporation may provide funds for:
•	
•	

public safety facilities;
recycling facilities;

The Type B sales tax 

provides cities with a 

wider range of uses 

for the tax revenues 

because it is intended 

to give communities 

an opportunity to 

undertake a project 

for quality of life 

improvements, including 

economic development 

that will attract 

and retain primary 

employers.



	 4

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT
econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Economic Development Sales Tax

All Type A and  

Type B corporations 

must file an annual 

report with the  

Texas Comptroller of 

Public Accounts  

by April 1.

•	
•	
•	
•	
•	

•	

streets and roads;
drainage and related improvements;
demolition of existing structures;
general municipally-owned improvements;
maintenance and operating costs associated 
with projects; and
improvements or facilities that the board 
determines will contribute to the promotion 
or development of new or expanded business 
enterprises that create or retain primary jobs.
Landlocked communities: A city classified as 

a “landlocked” community may create a Type B 
corporation to fund projects that promote new or 
expanded business development without requiring 
the project to create or retain primary jobs. A 
landlocked community is defined as a city that is 
wholly or partly located in either Harris County or 
Dallas County and has less than 100 acres within 
its city limits and extraterritorial jurisdiction 
that can be used to develop manufacturing or 
industrial facilities in accordance with the zoning 
laws or land use restrictions of the city.

Small municipalities: A Type B corporation 
created by a city with a population of 20,000 or 
less also may fund projects that do not create 
or retain primary jobs. If a project of this nature 
would require an expenditure of more than 
$10,000, the governing body of the city creating 
the corporation would have to adopt a resolution 
authorizing the project after giving the resolution 
at least two separate readings.

Infrastructure Improvements: A Type B 
corporation may promote new or expanded 
business development by funding streets 
and roads, rail spurs, water, sewer, 
electric and gas utilities, drainage, site 
improvements, and telecommunications 
and Internet improvements. Beach 
remediation along the Gulf of Mexico may 
also be funded. 

A Type B corporation may, with voter 
approval of the project, spend sales tax 
for a water supply or water conservation 
program or to clean up contaminated 
property. 

SPECIAL PROVISIONS FOR BORDER COMMUNITIES 

Development corporations created by cities 
located within 25 miles of the Texas-Mexico 
border may fund airport facilities if the city has 
a population of less than 50,000 or an average 
unemployment rate that is greater than the state 
average rate during the most recent 12-month 
period for which data is available preceding 
the date the project is approved. In addition to 
airports, Type A and Type B corporations located 
in Hidalgo County may fund ports, and sewer or 
solid waste disposal facilities required or suitable 
for infrastructure necessary to promote or 
develop new or expanded business enterprises. 

CAN YOU UNDERTAKE PROJECTS OUTSIDE  
CITY LIMITS? 

An economic development corporation may 
undertake projects outside city limits so long as 
it is clear that the city benefits from the project. 
If a corporation undertakes a project outside city 
limits, it must receive permission to do so from 
the governing body of the entity with jurisdiction 
in that area. For example, if a corporation locates 
a project beyond the city limits, it should seek 
approval from the county’s commissioners court. 

REPORTING REQUIREMENTS OF TYPE A  
AND TYPE B CORPORATIONS 
The Development Corporation Act requires 
that all Type A and Type B corporations file an 
annual report with the Texas Comptroller of Public 
Accounts by April 1 of each year. The report must 



5

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT
econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Economic Development Sales Tax

Economic development 

projects that clearly 

benefit a city may take 

place outside the  

city’s limits.

include the corporation’s economic development 
objectives, revenues and expenditures for the 
preceding fiscal year, a breakdown of these 
expenditures and a list of the corporation’s 
assets. 

The Comptroller also may ask for any other 
information required to determine the use 
of revenue from sales and use tax imposed 
under Type A or Type B to encourage economic 
development in the state. The report form 
and instructions for submitting the report are 
available through the Comptroller’s website. 
This information is compiled in the Economic 
Development Corporation Report to the 
Legislature each biennium. 

HOW TO IMPOSE THE TAX AND  
CALL AN ELECTION? 
City voters must approve this special, dedicated 
tax at an election held for that purpose. Cities 
may call for this election in one of two ways:
•	 the governing body may call an election on its 

own; or 

•	 the city council must call for the election 
if petitioned by at least 20 percent of the 
number of voters who cast ballots in the most 
recent regular municipal election. 
For guidance on the timing of elections, please 

contact the Secretary of State at 512-463-
5650 or toll free at 800-252-8683. Additional 

information is available on the Secretary of 
State website. 

The election must be held on one of the two 
uniform election dates:
•	
•	

the first Saturday in May; or
the first Tuesday after the first Monday in 
November. 

HOW LONG IS THE TAX EFFECTIVE? 
A development corporation’s sales tax approved 
without a limit on its duration is effective until 
repealed by an election. 

A tax imposed for a specified period expires 
at the end of that period; it may be extended or 
reimposed after its expiration date only with voter 
approval. 

A tax for a specific project expires when all 
debts related to the project and obligations 
from the tax proceeds have been paid in full. A 
tax imposed for a specific project may also be 
reimposed by an election. 

A Type A or Type B sales tax is effective until 
the city notifies the Comptroller’s office to stop 
collecting the tax. A city must continue assessing 
the tax until all obligations incurred by the 
corporation, including principal and interest on 
bonds, are satisfied. 

CAN THE TAX BE INCREASED OR DECREASED?

INITIATING AN ORDINANCE TO CHANGE THE TAX 
RATE

As with adoption, the sales and use tax rate must 
be increased or decreased in increments of 0.125 
percent; the minimum Type A or Type B tax rate is 
0.125 percent and may not result in a combined 
rate of all local sales and use taxes exceeding 2 
percent. 

If a city is already imposing an economic 
development sales tax, the city’s governing body 
may adopt an ordinance calling for an election to 
increase, reduce or repeal the existing tax. The 
ordinance may be initiated by a majority vote of 
the governing body, or by a petition of registered 
voters. 

The city’s voters must 

approve an economic 

development tax before 

it can be enacted.

http://comptroller.texas.gov
http://comptroller.texas.gov/transparency/reports/economic-development-corporation/
http://comptroller.texas.gov/transparency/reports/economic-development-corporation/
https://www.sos.state.tx.us/
https://www.sos.state.tx.us/


	 6

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT
econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Economic Development Sales Tax

Sales taxes paid 

by consumers in one 

month, are remitted to 

the Texas Comptroller 

the next month by 

businesses, and paid 

to the city during the 

following month.

•	

•	
•	
•	
•	
•	

•	

PETITION REQUIREMENTS 

A petition to initiate a change in the Type A tax 
requires 10 percent or more of the registered 
voters to request the city to call an election for that 
purpose. 

No specific procedures for requesting Type 
B tax rate changes are included in the statute; 
however, general provisions of the Texas Tax 
Code for calling an election may be used. Under 
these provisions, the city council must call an 
election if a number of qualified voters of the 
municipality equal to at least 20 percent of the 
number of votes cast in the most recent regular 
municipal election present a petition to the 
governing body for a vote. Dissolution of a Type 
B corporation can be called for by petition of 10 
percent of the registered voters in the city. 

If the election to adopt or change the tax rate is 
by petition, the governing body must determine if 
the petition is sufficient within 30 days of receiving 
it. If the petition is sufficient, the city must, within 
60 days after receiving it, adopt the ordinance that 
calls for the election to be held on the next uniform 
election date. 

COMBINED BALLOT PROPOSITION 

If a city chooses to hold an election to reduce 
or abolish its Type A sales tax and adopt a sales 
tax under Type B, the city may address the two 
issues in a single ballot proposition. 

A municipality may combine into one ballot for 
voters to concurrently consider a proposition that:
•	 lowers or repeals any dedicated or special 

purpose municipal sales tax, and 

raises or adopts any other dedicated special 
purpose municipal sales tax (such as a sales 
tax levied to reduce the property tax rate). 
Only sales tax elections that may be called 

by the governing body of a city are eligible for 
combined ballot propositions. If a combined sales 
tax proposition is defeated, there is no effect on 
any existing sales taxes already imposed. 

WHEN DO TAX COLLECTIONS AND  
ALLOCATIONS START?

CERTIFYING ELECTION RESULTS 

If voters approve the tax, the governing body 
must adopt a resolution or ordinance declaring 
the election results in meeting minutes. 

The city secretary must send the certified 
copy of the resolution or ordinance with the 
election results to the Revenue Accounting, Tax 
Allocation Section of the Comptroller’s office. The 
information sent to the Comptroller must include: 

the date the election was held; 
the proposition voted on; 
number of votes cast for adoption; 
number of votes cast against adoption; 
number of votes by which the proposition was 
approved; and 
a statement the proposition was adopted. 
The Comptroller’s office must receive  

this information from the city secretary  
through U.S. certified or registered mail.  
The Comptroller’s office will notify the city 
secretary when it is ready to handle the 
administration of the tax. Questions may be 
emailed to taxalloc.revacct@cpa.texas.gov.

COMPTROLLER’S ADDRESS 

Comptroller of Public Accounts 
Revenue Accounting Division 
Tax Allocation Section 
P.O. Box 13528
Austin, TX 78711-3528 

mailto:taxalloc.revacct@cpa.texas.gov%20?subject=Economic%20Development%20Sales%20Tax
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm
https://statutes.capitol.texas.gov/Docs/TX/htm/TX.321.htm


7

FOR MORE INFORMATION,  
VISIT OUR WEBSITE

Comptroller.Texas.Gov

RECEIVE ECONOMIC  
DEVELOPMENT TAX HELP  

BY EMAIL AT
econ.dev@cpa.texas.gov

Economic Development Sales Tax

The tax becomes 

effective after one 

complete calendar 

quarter elapses from  

the date the 

Comptroller’s office 

receives notification  

of voter approval.

EFFECTIVE DATE 

The tax becomes effective after one complete 
calendar quarter elapses from the date the 
Comptroller’s office receives notification of voter 
approval. For example, if voters approve the tax 
in May, and the Comptroller’s office receives 
notification in June, then the tax becomes 
effective on Oct. 1, after the calendar quarter 
of July-August-September has elapsed. The 
Comptroller’s office will notify area merchants to 
begin collecting the new tax rate on Oct. 1, and 
the Comptroller will send the city its first revenue 
allocation in December. 

METHOD OF PAYMENT 

The Comptroller’s office will issue a payment 
for the total city tax and a letter with the 
first payment (that includes the economic 
development sales tax) with instructions 
explaining how to calculate the portion due 
the city and the amount due the development 

corporation. After a city receives the sales 
and use tax revenues from the Comptroller’s 
office, the city must deliver the revenue to the 
development corporation.

NEED MORE INFORMATION ABOUT ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX? 
The Comptroller’s office can provide presentations 
on matters related to local sales tax, including 
Type A and Type B sales taxes. Representatives 
also can meet in forums with city officials and the 
public to help them assess possible effects of the 
tax on their local communities, including effects 
on revenue. For more information about the sales 
tax, or to request a speaker to present information 
about the sales tax to your community, call  
844-519-5672. 

The Texas Municipal League publishes an 
Economic Development Handbook containing 
more detailed information and statutory citations. 

BALLOT LANGUAGE FOR AN ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT SALES TAX 

UNDER TYPE A 
Following is ballot language specified for Type A corporations under the Development Corporation Act: 
1.	 For a city to adopt, increase or reduce the tax, the ballot must state: The adoption of a sales and use 

tax for the promotion and development of new and expanded business enterprises at the rate of 	
. (Insert rate in increments of one-eighth of one percent as appropriate for the proposed tax rate.) 

2.	 A city may also allow a vote on a ballot proposition limiting the length of time a sales and use tax 
may be imposed. The following language should be added to #1: to be imposed for ___  years. 

3.	 A city may also indicate a specific project on the ballot to be funded with the sales tax revenue. 
In this case, a description of the project is substituted in #1 in place of the following ballot 
language: new and expanded business enterprises.

4.	 For a city to dissolve the Type A corporation, the ballot should state: Dissolution of the (name of 
development corporation). 

UNDER TYPE B 
Except for specific projects such as water supply facilities, water conservation programs and cleanup of 
contaminated property, the Development Corporation Act does not provide specific ballot language for 
Type B. City officials should consult with their legal counsel when drafting the ballot language under this 
section.

Disclaimer: This brochure should not be construed as, and is not a substitute for, legal advice. Cities are urged to 
consult their own legal counsel for any questions or interpretations about economic development laws.

https://www.tml.org/185/Economic-Development-Handbook-2017


WE’RE HERE TO HELP!
If you have questions or need information, contact us:

This publication is intended as a general guide and not as a comprehensive resource on the subjects covered. It is not a substitute for legal advice.

Glenn Hegar  
Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts

For more information,  
search our website at 

Comptroller.Texas.Gov 

Texas Comptroller of Public Accounts 
111 East 17th Street

Austin, Texas 78711-1440

  Sign up to receive email updates on  
 the Comptroller topics of your choice 
 at	

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities 
Act, this document may be requested in alternative 
formats by calling the appropriate toll free number 
listed or by sending a fax to 512-475-0900.

800-252-5555
911 Emergency Service/ 

Equalization Surcharge
Automotive Oil Fee
Battery Fee 
Boat and Boat Motor Sales Tax
Customs Broker
Mixed Beverage Taxes
Off-Road, Heavy-Duty  

Diesel E squipment  
Surcharge

Oyster Fee
Sales and Use Taxes

800-531-5441
Cement Tax
Inheritance Tax
Local Revenue
Miscellaneous Gross  

Receipts Taxes
Oil Well Servicing Tax
Sulphur Tax

800-442-3453
WebFile Help

800-252-1381
Bank Franchise
Franchise Tax

800-252-7875
Spanish

800-531-1441
Fax on Demand (Most frequently 

requested Sales and Franchise tax 
forms)

800-252-1382
Clean Vehicle Incentive Program
Manufactured Housing Tax
Motor Vehicle Sales Surcharge,  

Rental and Seller Financed Sales Tax
Motor Vehicle Registration Surcharge

800-531-5441
Fuels Tax
IFTA
LG Decals 
Petroleum Products Delivery Fee
School Fund Benefit Fee

800-252-1384
Coastal Protection
Crude Oil Production Tax
Natural Gas Production Tax

800-252-1387
Insurance Tax

800-862-2260
Coin-Operated Machines Tax
Hotel Occupancy Tax

800-252-1386
Account Status
Officer and Director Information

800-862-2260
Cigarette and Tobacco

888-4-FILING (888-434-5464)
TELEFILE: To File by Phone

800-252-1389
GETPUB: To Order Forms  

and Publications

800-654-FIND (800-654-3463)
Treasury Find

800-321-2274
Unclaimed Property Claimants
Unclaimed Property Holders
Unclaimed Property Name Searches 

512-463-3120 in Austin

877-44RATE4 (877-447-2834)
Interest Rate

Publication 96-302 • Revised February 2020

https://comptroller.texas.gov
https://public.govdelivery.com/accounts/TXCOMPT/subscriber/new/


 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #3 

 
  



(1) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 
i. 

ii. 

iii. 

City of Blanco, TX
Thursday, February 5, 2026

Exhibit 9A. Unified Development Code

Chapter 4. Zoning Districts and Use Regulations

§ 4.7. Temporary Use Permits.

Temporary Sales, Construction Officers [Offices]
and Model Homes. The following conditions must be met before
the Model Home use will be permitted in accordance with Section 3.7(5)
Temporary Use Permit:

A model home may be located within any zoning district provided it is
located within the legal subdivision for which lots are being sold. In
addition, the sales office occupying the Model Home shall only market
homes within the legal subdivision in which the Model Home is located.
(For example, a Model Home built in New Subdivision, Phase I cannot
market home located in New Subdivision, Phase II or in Other
Subdivision, etc.)
A conditional certificate of occupancy permit to operate the model home
as a sales office will expire after twelve (12) months unless it is renewed
by the respective business, which shall have the burden to demonstrate
that the conditions of approval still exist. The City Staff will then evaluate
the renewal request and determine its status. An unlimited number of
extensions can be applied for and considered.
The following exceptions to Section 3.7(6) above [sic] may apply:

The City may extend the permit for a model home which was
constructed to market one phase of a phased development to
market new phases of the same development when this results in
no increase in the total number of model homes within all of the
phases and is less intrusive to the developing neighborhood by
maintaining the most direct access to the model home from outside
of the neighborhood;
A permit [permitted] model home in one legal subdivision where a
builder is actively marketing lots may be used to market lots in
another legal subdivision if the builder has no model in the second
subdivision and when such sales are clearly secondary, as
demonstrated through signs and advertisements, to the marketing
of lots within the subdivision in which the model is located;
A model home constructed to market one legal subdivision may be
granted a temporary permit to market a new legal subdivision for
the period during which a new model home is being constructed in

2/5/26, 11:36 AM City of Blanco, TX Temporary Use Permits.

https://ecode360.com/print/BL6247?guid=39650868 1/3

https://ecode360.com/print/39650869#39650869
https://ecode360.com/print/39650870#39650870
https://ecode360.com/print/39650871#39650871
https://ecode360.com/print/39650872#39650872
https://ecode360.com/print/39650873#39650873
https://ecode360.com/print/39650874#39650874
https://ecode360.com/print/39650875#39650875


(d) 

(e) 

(f) 

(g) 

(h) 

(i) 

(j) 

(2) 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

the new legal subdivision. Such temporary permit shall be valid for
a period not to exceed six (6) months.

Construction of the model home must be consistent with the character
of the subject neighborhood. Signs must comply with sign regulations in
this Code, and the zoning district in which the model home located.
A conditional construction permit for the model home may be issued
once the streets to the subdivision have been constructed to sub grade
and water service and a fire hydrant has been located within five
hundred (500) feet of the lot on which the model home is located. The
Building Official shall note on the permit that the property owner accepts
all responsibility for commencing construction prior to completion of the
public improvements and City acceptance of the subdivision. The
conditional certificate of occupancy for the model home will not be
issued until the subdivision and all public improvements have been
accepted by the City, a final plat has been filed with the County, and all
utilities are connected to the home.
The model home must be constructed in such a manner that it can be
converted, without structural changes, and used as a single-family or
duplex (if applicable) residence after certificates of occupancy have
been issued to eighty (80) percent of the associated residential units or
when use as a sales office or model home has ceased. This includes
the provision of adequate off-street parking outside the front building
line.
There is no restriction on the number of model homes permitted in each
subdivision.
A temporary building for use as a sale or construction office is permitted
on a twelve (12) month or shorter basis, subject to the renewal policy
outlined for model homes, but only if a model home has not been
constructed. Once a model home has been constructed, the temporary
building must be removed.
If the operation of the model home or temporary building used as a
sales office violates any City ordinances including the provisions of this
Code, the Certificate of Occupancy shall be revoked, unless satisfactory
compliance is achieved.
Temporary site storage or trash bins shall be located so as not to create
a nuisance (see Chapter 6 and 7 for guidelines for concealment).

Temporary Concrete Products.
Temporary facilities for manufacturing concrete or concrete products
may be located in all zoning districts where they are directly associated
with construction in the area.
Retail sales of concrete products shall be prohibited in conjunction with
temporary concrete plants. The production site must be returned to its
pre-construction state following completion of the associated project.
The City Staff may impose specific terms and conditions on the
issuance of a temporary use permit for concrete products based on the
need to control dust and concrete waste materials and other forms of
pollution, noise, and hours of operation, and obstruction or interference
with automobile and other transportation.

2/5/26, 11:36 AM City of Blanco, TX Temporary Use Permits.

https://ecode360.com/print/BL6247?guid=39650868 2/3

https://ecode360.com/print/39650876#39650876
https://ecode360.com/print/39650877#39650877
https://ecode360.com/print/39650878#39650878
https://ecode360.com/print/39650879#39650879
https://ecode360.com/print/39650880#39650880
https://ecode360.com/print/39650881#39650881
https://ecode360.com/print/39650882#39650882
https://ecode360.com/print/39650883#39650883
https://ecode360.com/print/39650884#39650884
https://ecode360.com/print/39650885#39650885
https://ecode360.com/print/39650886#39650886
https://ecode360.com/print/39650887#39650887
https://ecode360.com/print/39648629#39648629
https://ecode360.com/print/39648663#39648663


(d) 

(3) 

(a) 

A site plan is required for the site with the submittal for the temporary
use permit.

Temporary Travel Trailer and Recreational Vehicle
Use.

The temporary use of travel trailers and recreational vehicles by visitors
to the City of Blanco on private property for up to thirty (30) days is
allowed. Extensions must be approved by City Council.

(Ordinance adopted 11/10/20)

2/5/26, 11:36 AM City of Blanco, TX Temporary Use Permits.

https://ecode360.com/print/BL6247?guid=39650868 3/3

https://ecode360.com/print/39650887#39650887
https://ecode360.com/print/39650888#39650888
https://ecode360.com/print/39650889#39650889


(b) There are no specific restrictions applicable to the Special Use Permit 
requirements. 

(5) Group Home. 

(a) A group home, as defined and regulated by State agency, is permitted in 
accordance with this Code provided that the home is the only permitted use on 
a legally platted single lot. 

(6) Industrialized housing. 

(a) All single-family detached or duplex industrial housing units shall be required 
to have similar exterior siding, roofing, roofing pitch, foundation fascia, and 
fenestration. 

(b) A complete set of designs, plans, and specifications shall be submitted to City 
Staff with the Building Permit bearing a stamp of approval from the Texas 
Industrialized Building Code Council and confirmation that each module or 
modular component bears an approved decal or insignia by the Texas 
Department of Licensing and Regulation signifying that each module or 
component has received a post-construction inspection in conformance with 
state mandated building codes. This requirement is in addition to general 
Building Permit requirements for all housing. 

(7) Manufactured Home. 

(a) Placement of manufactured homes types 

i. Manufactured homes, as defined by the State of Texas, must be placed a 
minimum of 150 feet from the boundaries of an R1 or R2 residential 
district. 

(8) Manufactured Home Park. 

(a) All manufactured home subdivisions or developments will be consistent with 
all other provisions of this Code. 

(b) For each manufactured home moved into a manufactured housing district, all 
proper permitting shall be obtained through the City. 

(c) Any person whose application for a permit under this section has been denied 
may request a hearing as provided in Chapter 3. 

(d) In calculating the impervious cover for lots the manufactured home will be 
treated as a part of the impervious percentage calculation. 

(e) The City is authorized to make inspections as are necessary to determine 
compliance with the Code. (NEED CLARIFICATION:) Residential and a 
Certified Building Inspector for Commercial Property. The City Staff will 
determine the appropriate fee. 

i. The inspection shall include the following: 

City of Blanco, TX

§ 4.6 § 4.6

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BL6247 on 2026-01-30



1. Gas system.System to meet the requirements of the International 
Plumbing Code, 2015 Edition. 

2. Electrical system.System to meet the requirements of the National 
Electrical Code. 2014 Edition. 

3. Water supply.Hookups shall be made with schedule #40 PVC pipe 
or equivalent piping. 

4. Sewer system piping shall be installed to connect the manufactured 
home to the subdivision sewer and to provide for gravity flow. Only 
rigid pipes shall be used, and piping shall be protected against 
damage. 

5. Manufactured home stand.The area beneath the manufactured home 
shall be graded so that water will not stand under the home. The 
stand shall provide a stable area for placing a [of] tie-down anchors 
and blocking. 

6. Tie-downs.The manufactured home shall be tied down as required 
by state standards. 

7. Blocking.The manufactured home shall be blocked as required by 
state standards. 

8. Skirting shall be required on all Manufactured homes and will consist 
of one of the following materials: Vinyl, Stone, Stucco, or Fiber 
Cement or equivalent and approved by the City Staff. 

ii. Upon completion and approval of required inspections a certificate of 
occupancy will be issued for the manufactured home. 

iii. A manufactured home may only be imported into the City of Blanco if it 
is on an MH zoned lot or replacing a unit in a Manufactured Home Park. 

iv. Signs:A sign shall be permitted at entrance to the Manufactured Home 
Park except that not more than one sign shall be permitted for one park, 
and sign shall be subject to the following provisions: 

1. Signs may be illuminated but the source of light shall not be visible 
and shall not be intermittent or flashing, revolving signs shall not be 
permitted. Signs shall not be lighted between the hours of 10:00 p.m. 
and 6:00 a.m. 

2. Such signs may be freestanding but shall have no more than two 
supports and the top of the sign shall be no more than eight feet above 
the grade. 

3. Each sign shall be single-faced and shall be limited to a maximum 
area of 12 square feet. 

City of Blanco, TX

§ 4.6 § 4.6

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BL6247 on 2026-01-30



4. All signs shall conform to the requirements concerning setback from 
public streets that are applicable to structures, except that such signs 
may be attached flat against a wall or fence surrounding the 
manufactured home park, no portion of which shall extend into the 
public right-of-way. 

(f) Parking:Two spaces per dwelling unit in a manufactured housing subdivision 
and two spaces per dwelling unit in a manufactured home park. 

(g) Landscaping:For manufactured home parks, generally 4 percent of net site 
area or 30-foot deep landscaped area adjacent to public right-of-way. 

i. Property Development standards for Manufactured Housing Subdivision 
and Parks will be as follows: 

“MH” District: Manufactured Home Subdivision 
Land Area 4 acre minimum 

Lot Area 4,000 square feet minimum per unit 

Lot Width 30 feet minimum 

Lot Coverage 50 percent maximum 

Front Yard 20 feet minimum 

Rear Yard 5 feet minimum 

Side Yard  

Interior lot 5 feet minimum 

Corner lot 10 feet minimum 

Height 30 feet maximum 

(9) Recreational Vehicle Park. 

(a) Recreational Vehicle Parks are allowed in the PR district as approved by a 
Special Use Permit. 

(10) Triplex. 

(a) There are no specific restrictions applicable to the Special Use Permit 
requirement. 

(11) Quadplex. 

(a) There are no specific restrictions applicable to the Special Use Permit 
requirement. 

(12) Single-Family Attached. 

(a) A single-family, attached dwelling is permitted in accordance with Table 4.2 
provided that all dwelling units are situated on separate legally platted lots. 

City of Blanco, TX

§ 4.6 § 4.6

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BL6247 on 2026-01-30



(Ordinance adopted 11/10/20; Ordinance adopting Code) 

City of Blanco, TX

§ 4.6 § 4.6

Downloaded from https://ecode360.com/BL6247 on 2026-01-30



 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #4 

 
  



 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #5 

 
  



 

        City of Blanco                                       

                             P.O. Box 750 Blanco, Texas 78606 
Office 830-833-4525 Fax 830-833-4121 

 
2-4-26 
 
 
RE: 30 Day notification  
 

Byron G. Sanderfer, PE  
Ardurra Public Works Practice Director-Central  
8918 Tesoro Drive, Suite 401 San Antonio, Tx 78217   

 
 
Byron,  
 
This is notification of a 30 day notice for termination of the Professional Services Agreement between 
City of Blanco TWDB DWSRF #62938 Water System Improvements and Ardurra Group, Inc.  As part of 
the contract the City will pay services rendered to Ardurra and be given the appropriate work product 
associated with the project. 
 
All other projects that Ardurra may be working with the City of Blanco on is not impacted by this 
notification. 
 
 
Respectfully, 
 
 
 
Warren Escovy 
City Administrator 

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Pevida+Highway+Designers,+LLC/@25.7887836,-80.3378608,17z/data=!3m1!4b1!4m5!3m4!1s0x88d9b913224aa7af:0xdc20a1570b38487f!8m2!3d25.7887836!4d-80.3356721


 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #6 

 
  













 
 

NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #7 

 
  



1 
 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 2026-R-002 

 
A RESOLUTION DIRECTING THE MAYOR, CITY ADMINISTRATOR, AND THE 
CITY’S TRANSPORTATION PLANNING COMMITTEE TO DEVELOP, IN 
COORDINATION WITH THE TEXAS DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 
OTHER INTERESTED PARTIES, A COMPREHENSIVE TRAFFIC MANAGEMENT 
AND TRAFFIC-CALMING PLAN FOR U.S. HIGHWAY 281 IN DOWNTOWN 
BLANCO; REQUIRING THE FORMULATION OF AN ACTION PLAN WITH 
PRELIMINARY COST ANALYSES; ESTABLISHING A SIX-MONTH REPORTING 
DEADLINE TO THE CITY COUNCIL; AND RELATED MATTERS 
 
WHEREAS, U.S. Highway 281 is the principal north–south transportation corridor 
through the City of Blanco and serves both local traffic and substantial regional and 
through-traffic; and 
 
WHEREAS, traffic congestion, vehicle speeds, pedestrian safety concerns, and conflicts 
between local and through-traffic along U.S. Highway 281 in the downtown area have 
materially affected public safety, emergency response, local commerce, and the historic 
character and quality of life within the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to pursue near-term, practical, and context-sensitive 
strategies to manage and calm traffic along U.S. Highway 281 in downtown Blanco while 
longer-term regional transportation concepts continue to be discussed; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Texas Department of Transportation has adopted policies and guidance 
encouraging Complete Streets principles and context-sensitive solutions that consider 
safety, mobility, community character, and multimodal use when planning and operating 
state highways within communities; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Blanco is currently engaged in an update to its Comprehensive 
Plan through the work of its Comprehensive Planning Committee, which includes 
consideration of land use, transportation, downtown character, pedestrian safety, and long-
term community development; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council finds that a structured planning effort culminating in a clear 
action plan, with identified measures, implementation steps, and preliminary cost 
information, and that is informed by and coordinated with the ongoing Comprehensive 
Plan process, is necessary to support informed decision-making and effective coordination 
with TxDOT and other partners; 



2 
 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
BLANCO, TEXAS, THAT: 
 
1. The City Council hereby directs the Mayor, the City Administrator, and the City’s 
Transportation Planning Committee to develop, in collaboration with the Texas 
Department of Transportation (“TxDOT”) and other interested or affected parties, a 
comprehensive traffic management and traffic-calming plan addressing congestion, safety, 
and traffic operations along U.S. Highway 281 within the downtown area of the City of 
Blanco. 
 
2. The planning effort shall be undertaken, where feasible, in a manner consistent with 
TxDOT’s Complete Streets policies and context-sensitive solutions approach. 
 
3. In developing the traffic management and traffic-calming plan, the City shall take into 
consideration the work of the City’s Comprehensive Plan Committee currently underway. 
 
4. The plan shall evaluate traffic-calming measures including, without limitation, enhanced 
crosswalks, lane narrowing, gateway treatments, median improvements, signage, signal 
timing modifications, pedestrian and bicycle enhancements, and related operational 
strategies. 
 
5. The planning effort shall include an advisable action plan with preliminary cost analyses 
and be presented to City Council within six (6) months. 
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ____________, 2026. 
 
 
___________________________ 
Candy Cargill, Mayor 
 
___________________________ 
Haylee Hartman, Deputy City Secretary 
 



NEW BUSINESS 
ITEM #8 



RESOLUTION NO.2026-R-003 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING A STATE-CONDUCTED ECONOMIC IMPACT 
ANALYSIS OF POTENTIAL HIGHWAY RELIEF ROUTES AROUND SMALL 
RURAL COMMUNITIES; AUTHORIZING A LEGISLATIVE EFFORT TO SEEK 
SUCH A STUDY; IDENTIFYING THE CITY OF BLANCO AS A PILOT 
COMMUNITY FOR PURPOSES OF THE STUDY; AND RELATED MATTERS 

WHEREAS, the City of Blanco is a small rural community whose economic vitality, historic 
character, and quality of life are closely connected to transportation access, regional 
mobility, and through-traffic patterns; and 

WHEREAS, various concepts for potential highway “relief routes” or bypass alignments 
around Blanco have been discussed or studied at different times, and such routes may 
have significant and differing impacts on local businesses, tourism, land use, tax base, 
emergency services, and long-term community development; and 

WHEREAS, members of the City Council hold various perspectives regarding the potential 
location and effects of any future relief route, and the City Council desires objective, 
independent, and data-driven analysis to better inform public policy discussions and 
future decisions; and 

WHEREAS, an economic impact analysis conducted or sponsored by the State of Texas 
could evaluate the short- and long-term economic effects of alternative relief-route 
scenarios, including impacts on local commerce, property values, municipal revenues, 
workforce access, tourism, and community sustainability; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council believes that Blanco is well-situated to serve as a pilot or 
model community for such an analysis, the results of which could inform not only local 
decision-making but also future transportation planning efforts affecting similarly situated 
rural communities across the State of Texas; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that requesting and supporting such a study through a 
legislative initiative is consistent with the City’s responsibility to act in the best interests of 
its residents and to seek sound information before final positions on major infrastructure 
matters are determined; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BLANCO, 
TEXAS, THAT: 

1. The City Council supports and requests the preparation of a comprehensive, state-
conducted or state-sponsored economic impact analysis evaluating the potential effects 



of proposed or conceptual highway relief routes around small rural communities, with 
specific consideration of the City of Blanco. 

2. The City of Blanco is hereby identified and proposed as an initial pilot community for 
such an economic impact analysis. 

3. The City Council authorizes the Mayor, City Administrator, City Attorney, and/or the City’s 
legislative or governmental relations representatives to communicate with members of the 
Texas Legislature and its legislative committees, the Commission of the Texas  Department 
of Transportation (TXDOT) and senior staff leadership at TXDOT, and other relevant state 
agencies, to advocate for the authorization, funding, and completion of such a study. 

4. Nothing in this Resolution shall be construed as endorsing, opposing, or predetermining 
any specific relief-route alignment, location, or design. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ____________, 2026. 

 
 
_______________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
_______________________ 
City Secretary 




